———
T e———
——

CEVA Group Plc Annual Report 2012

CEVA Group Plc
Annual Report 2012

Company No. 5900853

\

Al

I

P
<
o’
2]
u

121172013
COMPANIES HOUSE

FF

A20 11/10/2013
COMPANIES HOUSE

Dniving customer success through...
The power of our people

fun

ratE IETEE SHEEE UK TIE NISIEEY W) R ED NN
"AZISHUP4*

#246



02

CEVA Group Pl Annua! Report 2012

Contents

Review
Key Financial Results

CEVA ataglance

Financial Statements
Operating and Financal Review
Summary of Corporate and Financing Structure
Summary of Facilities and Notes
Principal Resks and Uncertainties
Directors’ Report
Finanaial statements Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statement of Changes i Equity
Notes to the Consolidated Financal Statements
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of CEVA Group Plc (consolidated)
Company Balance Sheet
Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of CEVA Group Plc (parent)
Comparative Information for Year 2011

Descuption of Key Line Items in the Consolidated Income Statement

Certain Definitions

03
04

Qs
08
09
n
14
17
18
19
20
21
2
66
67
68
70
71
72

73




t

03 CEVA Group Pic Annual Report 2012

Key Financial Results

| € milhons 2012 201
! Revenue 7,224 6895
f’ Adjusted EBITDA 251 in
i
Net Working Capital (67) {76)
Net Capital Expenditure 89 68
Cash generated from Operations 145 217
| Net Debt 2501 2774

Cautionary statement the opeiating and financial review and certain other sections of this
document contain forward looking staterments which are subject to nsk factors associated
with, amongst others, the economic and bustness circumstances occurning from time to tme
in the countrles and markets in which the Group operates It 1s believed that the expectations
reflected in these statements are reasonable but they may be affected by a wide ronge of
variables, which could cause actual results to differ matecially fram those currently entiapated
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Ceva... at a glance

Our people are at the very core of the supply chain. We have more than 49,000
employees worldwide in over 160 countries and territonies, all committed to
making our customers successful through efficient and flexible supply chains.

Highhights

« Over 1000 locations worldwide
» Mare than 49,000 employees
» Present in over 160 countrles

Sector breakdown

Automotive 28%
Consumer and retai) 23%
Technology 20%
Industrial 17%
Energy 7%
Other 5%

Regional breakdown

Americas

Revenue €2,179 million
Employees 18.881
Nothern Europe

Revenue €1,669 milion
Employees 11,650

Southern Europe, Middle East and Africa

Revenue €1,237 mulhan
Employees 7198

Asia Pacific

Revenue €2,109 milion
Employees 11377

Revenue in Contract Logistics and Freight Management
Contract Logistics revenue €3,882 million
Frelght Management revenue €3,342 million
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Operating and Financial Review

The table below shows the Group s key consolidated finenaal metnies for the years endad 2012 and 2011
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

€ millions 2042 2011
Revenue 7224 6895
Revenue growth LB% 07%
Adjusted EBITDA 251 321
Adjusted EBITDA as a % of revenue 35% 47%
Loss before income taxes (669} 199
Net copitol expenditure 89 &8
Net capital expenditure as-a % of revenue 12% 10%
Cash generated from opemations 145 217

For deflitions of the terms used in the cbove table plecse refer Lo page 73

The table below shows the Group s key other financial metncs os at 31 December 2012 and 2011
AS AT 31 DECEMBER

€ mikons 2012 20M

Net working capital (67) (75)
Cash ond cash equivalents 257 217
Net debt 2501 2774

For definitions af the terms used in the above table please refer to page 73

Revenue

Revenue increased by 4 8 % from £6,895 mithon in 2011 to €7,224 million in 2012 At constanit exchange rates revenue was in hne with 2011 results with
flat Freight Management revenues and a ¢ 3% increase iIn our Contract Logistics business Freight Management revenues were impacted by lower alrfrerght
volumes particularly out of Asia, compensated by a solid performance in our ocean freight business across all our regrons The sight Inkrese In our Contract
Logistics revenues reflects soft conditions across various key markets most evidently in Southern Europe compensated by a strong performance in Asia Pacific

CEVA operates throughout the world and s impacted by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates particularty the United Stotes deltar, Chinese yuan
and the Bntish pound At constant 2011 exchange rates our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been €6,905 milllon (2011 €5,895
miflion}

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA s a key financial measure used by managernent to assess operatienal performance It excludes the impact of speafic items suchas
costs incuried in the reahzation of our cost containment programs other non recutning charges and the profits or kosses realized on cettain non recumng
transactions Previcusly this measure of performance was calted EBITDA befoie speafic ltems

Adjusted EBITDA decreased by 21 8% to €251 mullion in 2012 compared to €321 millionn 2011 Freight Management Adjusted EBITDA in 201 2 decreased
by 17 7% campared to 2011 partly due to a modal shift to ocean freight with increased competition ond soft alrfreight volures Contract Logistics Adjusted
EBITDA decreased by 24 4% In 2012 as our business was affected by the continuing general economic downturn with lower valumes i vanous key markets in
particular Southern Europe

At constant 2011 exchange rates Adjusted EBITDA decreosed by 28 0% from €321 million to €231 million

Impairment

Goodwillimpairment charges of €312 million were recognized for the year ended 31 December 2012 {2011 nil) as a result of the arnual goadwalt impairment
testing These non cash impairment charges were primonly driven by the impact on business valuations from sigruficantly lower forecost cash flows from
tevised internal 5 year projections reflecng recent experiences and potential future challenging economic and competitive conditions

Loss before income taxes

Loss before income taxes in 2012 waos €669 milhon, compared to €191 millan for 2011 with the year on year change pnnapally due 10 goodwill Impalmment
of €312 iifson (refer to Note 12 [ntanglble assets’) lower earmings maeased financial expense induding €35 milkon of accelerated non cash amartization
of debt issuance costs as a result of the refinancing completed on 1 February 2012 and unrealized non cash foreign exchange movements

Net capital expenditure
Our net capital expenditure wos €89 mitkon in 2012 (2011 €68 mificn) The increase in net capital expenditure Is due te the onboarding of new customers
ond ongoing mantenance Generally new Contract Loglstics wins represent the largest companent of our copital expenditure primanly consisting of
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Operating and Financial Review

Investments in warehousing equipment and supplles Cn a gross bosis, before netuing sale and leaseback and other finaneing transactions capital expenditure
was €101 million in 2012 {2011 €73 million)

The nature and type of our historical copltal expenditute iequirernents are generally expected to continue going forward  The overall low level of expenditure
relative to Tevenus 1s due 0 our non asset based operating maodel and disciplined mvestment approach Net capital expenditure represented 1 2% of revenue

In the year ended 31 Decernber 2012 and 1 0% of revenue In 2011

Net working capital
Qs net warkuing capital was €(67) mullion as at 31 December 2012 {31 December 2011 £(76) milhan) The increase s mainly due Lo slightly highet trade

recervables and accrued income balances at 2012 year end partly offset by a higher trade payables balance

Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 December 2012 CEVA had €257 million (31 December 2011 €217 million) of cash on its balance sheet With undrawn central faciities of €39 mulhon

availcble ot 31 Decernber 2012 (2011 €73 million), we therefore had headroom of €296 millron (31 December 2011 €290 rmillion} to service operating
actvities for the foreseeable future Following our Recapitalization, which dosed 2 May 2013 we further strengthened our kquidity with €165 million of
proceeds from equity capital from our new shareholders os discussed further in note 29 “Events after balance sheet date

Net debt
Net debt defined as total prmaipal debt less cash and cash equivalents, has decreased by 9 8% to €2 501 million as at year end (31 December 2011 €2 774

mullion), pnncipally driven by the refinancing which was completed on t February 2012 Following our Recapitalzation which dosed 2 May 2013 we further
reduced ow debt substantially as discussed further in note 29 Events after balonce sheet date

Net finance expense
Net finance expense for 2012 was €348 mulion induding a €16 million foresgn exchange loss Net finance expense for 2011 was €266 milhon Indeding €12

million foreign exchange profit The increase in net finance expense 1s primarly due to €35 rmulbon of accelerated non cash amortizotion of debt 1ssuance coslts
os a result of the refinancing completed on 1 Februory 2012

Segment results
The tables below show the Group s operational performance by business segment

€ millons 2012
Frelght Contract
Management Logistics Total
Revenue 1342 3882 7,224
Adjusted EBITDA 102 149 251
Adjusted EBITDA as a% of revenue 31% 38% 3s%
€ mill:ons 2011
Freight Controct
Management Logistics Total
Revenue 3152 3743 6895
Adjusted EBITDA 124 197 N
Adjusted EBITDA as a% of revenue 39% 53% 4L7%

Revenue
Revenue in Freight Management increased by 6 0% to €3 342 millionin 2012 compared to €3,152 mithon in 2011, while at constant exchange rates revenue

was flat A strong performance in our ocean business across all our regions drove growth constrained by softer arr freight volumes expenenced ocross the
ndustry particularly out of Asio and due in part to o modal shift from arr freight to ocean freight.

Revenue In Controct Logistics increased by 3 7 % to €3 882 mion in 2072 compared to €3,743 million In 2011 while at constant exchange rates revenue was
flat Results were drivent by a strong performance in Asla Pacific, of fset by soft conditions across vonous key markets, mast evidently In Southern Europe

Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA In Freight Management decreased to €102 million in 2012 from €124 million m 2011 This 1s due to lower volumes increases In costs and

changes In the customer and freight mode mix

Adjusted EBITDA 1n Contract Logistics decreased by 24 4% to €149 million in 2012 compared to €197 mitlion in 2011 This is largely driven by the impact of
the dollenging economic conditions on volumes and controct profitabiity
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Operating and Financial Review

Geographicol information

The tables below show the resulis of the Group frem a geographucal perspective

€ militons 2012
Southern Europe,
Northern Middle East
Amercas Asta Pacific Europe and Africa Total
Revenue 2179 2109 1,699 1237 7,224
Adjusted EBITDA 69 88 76 18 251
Adjusted EBITDA as a% of revenue 32% 42% 45% 15% 35%
€ millions 2011
Southern Europe,
Northern Middle East
Amenicas Asla Paafic Europe and Afnca Total
Revenue 2061 1926 1644 1,264 6895
Adjusted EBITDA 91 100 78 52 3
Adjusted EBITDA as a% of revenue La% 52% 47% L% 47%
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Summary of Corporate and Financing
Structure at 31 December 2012

€776 million
Senior Secured Facilities
due 201542016
S |
$775 million
8.375% Senior Secured Notes
due 2017
S t——

$215 million
11.625% Senior Secured Notes
cue 2016

$702 million 1
11.5% Junios Priarity Senior CEVA GrOUp piC
Scculqd Notes due 2018

€11 rmillion
12 % Senior Motes
due 2014

€620 mullion CEVA CEVA
12.75% Senior Notes Guarantor Restricted Non-Guaeantor Restricted
due 2020 Subsidiaries ¢ Subsidiaries ?

€113 million
9.75 % Senior Unsecured Loan
due 2018

B2 0BT SIARIREa (Y
qliel? O)EN

1 As ot 31 December 2012 €104 rullion was drown under the revolving credit fadllity (2011 €40 milron) and €171 mullion (2011 €174 million) of letters of
credit were 1ssued but undrawn under the synthetic L/C facility and revolving aredit foaility The committed senior secured faciities ore secured by substantially
all of the assets of the Company and certain of its subsidaries

2 CEVA Limited and cettaln of the Company s operating subsidianes located in Australia Belgium Brazd, Canada Germany Hong Kong, Luxembourg The
Netherdonds United Kingdom und the United Stotes have guoronteed the notes The guarantors represemt 60% 2011 58 %) of owr oggregoted revenue
before intercompany eminations, 64% (2011 55%) of our aggregated Adjusted EBITDA and 64% (2011 49% ) of our aggregated EBITDA for the year
ended 31 December 2012 The guarantors of the notes also guarantee our senlor secured facilities on a senlor secured basis Not all of the guarantors are
borrowers under each of the senor secured term facility the tevolving credit focibty and the synthetic L/C faciity

3 Our non guarantor subsidianes accounted for 40% (2011 42%) of our total aggregated revenue before intercompany elimenabans and 36% (2011 51%)
of our aggregated EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2012

4 The obligor under the ABL faclity 1s CEVA US Receivables LLC whach is & bankruptcy remote entity formed in connection with Lhe establishment of the ABL
faciity CEVA US Recevables LLC does not guarantee the Group s other indebtedness and 15 an urrestricted subsidiary under the Group s other debt factlities

5 On 1 October 2012 certoin Australion subsidianes of the Group completed o A$40 million recevables purchase facity due 2015
€ Diagram excludes othes financing of €182 million induding finance leases, bank overdrafts and other loans
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Summary of Facilities and Notes

On 1 February 2012 CEVA Group Plc together with its parent CEVA Investments Limited { CIL'), completed a debt and equity funded finanang through

the issuance of US$325 million of 8 375% first [len senior secured notes due 2017 and US$620 mullion of 12 75% senior unsecured notes due 2020 The
proceeds together with cash on hand were used to redeem or repay all of the £164 milhon of term loans motuning in 2013 under CEVA s senior secured
crechit faciities €266 mullion of 8 5% senior notes due 2014 US$165 mition of seruor unsecured loon due 2015 and €81 milion of 10% senior subordmated
notes due 2016 CIL also issued over €850 million of new equity secunties to Apollo, which controls CIL, in exchange for the contiibution and subsequent
cancellation of €523 million of CEVA Group Pic debt and €355 melion of CIL secunties previously held by Apollo and its affilates The CEVA Group Pic debt
exchanged consisted of US$516 million of senior unsecured loan due 2018 €73 mullion of B 5% senior notes due 2018 and €57 million of 10% senior
subordinated notes due 2018 In addition we increased the size of the revoling credit facility under the senior secured foalities by €100 mdlion to €179
miilion These transactions resulted in the extension of maturities of CEVA Group Plc debt reduced our interest burden and increased our cash and undrawn
faciities

On 2 May 2012 the Group completed a refinancing of its synthetic letters of credits faaility due 2013 by increasing its existing term loan due 2016 by US$150
milhon This transaction has extended the matunty profile of the Group s debt ond increased our hiquidity

On 1 Octoher 2012 certain Australian subsidianes of the Group entered into a A$40 mullion recewvables purchase foolity due 30 Septemnber 2015

Semor Secured Facilities due 2015/2016

The Group entered nto senior secured faalities with certain banks to finance the acquisition of our Contract Logistics business on 4 November 2006 and our
Fresght Monagernent business on 2 August 2007 The focilities were subsequently amended and restated and have been subject to vanous prepayments and
incremental tranche add ons Of the £776 mullion total foahities os at 31 December 2012, €471 miflion was outstanding as term loans and €104 mdhon was
drawn under the revolving credit faciity €171 mulkon of letters of credit were 1ssued but undrawn under the synthetic L/C faciity and revolving credrt feality

B 375X Senior Secured Notes due 2017
On 14 December 2010, the Group 1ssued US$450 million 8 375% first lien sentor secured notes due 1 December 2017 Interest Is payable on 1 March and 1

Septernber each year Including the 1ssuance of the US$325 mullion first hen sernor secured notes on 1 February 2012 US$775 mudlion wos outstanding as at
31 December 2012

11 625% Semor Secured Notes due 2016
On 6 October 2009, the Group 1ssued US$210 mallion 11 625 % lien and a half senior secured notes dye 2016 Interest s payable on 1 April and 1 October
each year Asat 31 Decemnber 2012 US$210 million was outstanding

11 5% Jumor Prionty Sentor Secured Notes due 2018

0On 24 March 2010 the Group issued US$702 million of 11 5% junior prionty senior secured notes due 2018 Interest ispayable on 1 Apnl and 1 October each
year Asat 31 December 2012 US3702 million was outstanding

12X Senmor Notes due 2014

On 22 July 2009 the Group settled the private exchange offers announced on 19 June 2009 At the time of exchange an amount equivalent to €210 millon
of 12% second prionity semior secured notes due 2014 was 1ssued compnsing €120 milhon and U5$127 million (equivalent to €90 milhon) On 24 March
2010, US$127 methion and €109 million of these notes were repard using the proceeds from the issuance of the 11 5% unior priority semor secured notes due
2018 In connection with thss refinancing which induded a consent soliaitation, the remaining €11 miflion of the 12% second prionty notes due 2014 became
unsecured Asat 31 December 2012 €11 million was cutstanding

12 75X Senior Notes due 2020
On 1 February 2012 CEVA Group Pl 1ssued L5$620 miflion of 12 75 % senior unsecured notes due 2020 Interest s payable on March 31 and September 30
As at 31 December 2012 US5620 million wos outstanding

9 75% Serwor Unsecured Loan due 2018
On 2 August 2007 CEVA Group Pic entered into a U5$1 4 bilhon senior unsecured loan faclity This senior ursecured loan has a floating interest rate which s

capped The facilities were subsequently amended and restated and were partially repaid as part of the aforementioned debt and equity funded finaraing on
1 February 2012 Asat 31 Decernber 2012 US$113 milion was outstonding which amount 1s due in 2018

US ABL Facility due 2015

0On 19 November 2010, certamn US subsidianes of the Group and a new subsidiary CEVA US Recenvables LLC (Unrestncted Subsidiary) entered milo agreements
establishing an Asset Backed Loan {ABL) Facility with an initial commitment amaunt of US$200 milien On 30 November 2010 the committed amount of the
ABL Facility was increased to US$250 million The obhigations of the Unrestricted Subsidiary under the ABL Foality are secured on a first prierity basis by all
currently owned and subsequently acquired assets of the Unrestricted Subsidiary, induding but not imited to all of the accounts receivable transferred to the
Unrestricted Subsidiary by the US subsidianes The ABL Facility matures on 19 Navernber 2015 As at 31 December 2012, the outstanding drawn amount of
the ABL Facility was US$164 million
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Australian Receivables Facility due 2015
In October 2012 certain Austrahion subsidiaries of the Company entered into a Recervables Purchase Agreement wath a faality imit of A340 millon matunng
in September 2015 At 31 December 2012 the total amount of botrowings autstanding was A$40 mylhon (€31 mitlion)

Events after balance sheet date

Cn 3 Apn] 2013 CEVA Group Plcannounced a finanaial recapitahzation plan that would re¢uce substantialty CEVA s overall debt and interest costs, as well as
increase hquidity and strengthen sts capital structure {the Recapitahzation” or ‘Recap”) On 2 May 201 3 the Recapitalization successfully dosed The Recap will
enable CEVA 1o better serve its customers accelerate its growth throughout the world and fund the development of new supply chain products and services
The Recapitalization will reduce consolidated net debt by mare than €1 2 bilion (exdluding intercompany debt with CEVA Heldings LLC) reduce annual cash
interest expense by over €130 mitllion or appreximately 50% further strengthen our hquidity wath €165 million of proceeds from equity capital from our new

shareholders, and provide access to additional liquidity up to €65m through the finanang commitment from one of our largest Institutional investors CEVA

will utilize the new money for Investment in 1ts busmess plan
i

Following the Recapstalization, CEVA Holdings LLC { Holdings ) became the ultimate parent company of CEVA In the Recap, Apolla’s equity interests in CEVA
Investments Limited were eliminated and Apclle ocquired o minonty stake i the equity of Holdings through exchanging CEVA debt it held and through the

cash purchase of equity However, Apollo acguired control of Holdings through contractual arrangements

The Recapitahzation resulted in the following
+ €518 milion principal amount of Junior Pnonty Senior Secured Notes exchanged for equity in Holdings which then released the notes and received a like

amaunt of new junicr priority senior secured PIK notes
« €434 million principal amount of 12 75% Semior Notes exchanged for equity in Holdings whuch then released the notes

+ €6 milion principal amount of 12% Serwor Notes exchanged for equity in Holdings which then released the notes

« €85 million principal amount of Senior Unsecured Loans exchanged for equity m Holdings which then refeased the loans
» €69 milien principal amount of Term Loans and €160 mulion prinaipal amount of 8 375% Senior Secured Notes were released by one of CEVA's largest

institutional investors in return for €229 milhon pnncipal amount of new 4% Sentor Secured Notes

Plegse refer to note 29 Events ofter balance sheet date for further details
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

CEVA 1s impacted by a number of pnincipal risks and uncertainties, some of
which are not within our control. Many of the risks affecting CEVA are macro-
economic and generally affect all companies, whereas others are more
particular to CEVA This section outlines the more significant nisks, but 1s not
Intended to be an extensive analysis of all risks that could affect us.

indeed some risks may be unknown to us or more material than we currently estimate All of thern have the potential to impact CEVA and Its financal
performonce and should be considered when reading this report. The Board of Directors of CEVA Group Plc s regularty informed abaut exsting and new risks
and the measures used 10 manage them

Speafic nsks related to our business are nduded below

Adverse economic conditions

The supply chmn management industry 1s susceplible to trends in economic actmity mdudmg but not imited to Industrial production consurmer spending and
retarl activity and an economic crisis or slowdown may negatrvely affect our business in o number of ways [n particular our results of eperctions and financiel
condition are directly tied to the purchase and production of goods acress the global economy The pumary actvity of our Freight Management business 1s

to transport goods and our Contract Logrstics business s an integral part of the production, storoge ond distnbution of goods in many different industries
Changes n economic conditions could materially adversely impact our customers which could m turn impact their demand for ow services and the tesms on
which we provide them

Avallability of third-party providers

We do not In genergl malntain our own transportation networks Instead we rely on thurd porty transportation service providers for most of our contract
logistics transport services and substantiatty all of our Freight Management services Our abllily to serve some of our customers depends on the availabtiity

of space on passenger and cargo arrlines and ocean cariers that service the tronsportation lanes they use We cannot ossure you that we wil) be able to

obtain access to preferred third party networks at attroctive rates or thot these networks will have adequate avaable capacty to meet our needs In oddition,
although we seek to pass through third party transportation fate increases to our customers in certain Nstances we may not be gble to raise prices in sufficient
amounts or on a sufficiently rapid basis which could matenally adversely affect our profitability and results of operatwons

Cost base

In response to the recent economic turmotl we executed o number of ntiatives to reduce our costs In Novernber 2012 the Company announced a three
pronged cost reduction plan that will be focused on SGEA costs Freight Monagement direct costs and fixing underperforming contracts which will help to
improve our profitabrity In the event of another slowdown we may need to implement further cost reductron Initiatives Despite the large varioble cost
component of our business model such initiatives may not achieve the necessary cost savings to offset the potential dechine of our revenues In adduion, we
consistently target incremental cost savings as part of our operational improvements however we may not achleve Lhese targeted cost savings In the amounts
ot in the tme frames expected or at all

Long-term contracts

We enter Into long term contracts with many of our customers Although we seek to retain flexibility In our contractual arangements with our customers to
od;ust pricing terms or terminate contracts which become economically onerous we sometimes bear o portion of cost increeses if we are unable to adjust
these terms rapidly or suffeciently

We also enter Into contracts with third parties who provide services or property to us In connection with our provision of services under our customer contracts
These supplier contracts moy provide for fixed pnang ond other terms which we negotiate based on our assumptions regarding our customers scope of
services and volumes, the operational efficiencies and producthvity Improvements we expect to achieve and other estimates Although we seek to structure
our arrangements with third partses on a back to bock basis with the related customer amungerments—for example by entering into lease agreements with
durations and termunation aghts that are cotermnous with the durction of the customes contracts that the leased property 1s used 1o senice—or otherwise
seek to require our customers to assume these costs end commitments if they prematurely terminate their conlacts with us, there may be iInstances where
we are not able to offset or transfer such costs to our customers Furthermore, our assumptions and estimates regarding our customers' activities may prove
to be inaccurate s a result of changes to economic conditons, reductions in volumes or other developments, and as aresult our opérating margins may be
materially adversely affected undet contracts where we bear these nisks

Changes in trend toward outsourcing

Cur growth strategy 1s partially based on the assumption that the trend toward outsourang of supply chain management services will continue Third party
service providers such os ourselves are generally able to provide such services more efficiently than otherwise could be provided 'm house, peimarily as o result
of our expertise, lechnology and lower and mare flexible employee cost structure However If thes trend changes such that patentiol new customers deade to
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

continue to perform thetr own supply chain activities of If gur customers [n source significant aspects of thesr supply chain operations our business results of
aperations and financial condition may be matenially adversely affected

Changes in preferred modes of freight

There are a vanety of modes in which freight can be transported induding by atr, ocean road or raifrood We have diffening market positions and expaosure

to vanous mades of freight which have diffenng margin levels and net working capital requirernents White not ofl of these modes are Interchangeable,
depending on the ongrn and destination of freight our customners have substantial flexibility to choose the mode thot best suits their needs in terms of type of
freight cost, speed certainty of amval tme ond other factors Trends in preferred modes may shift over time as their charactenstics change or our custamers
pronties change For example durng periods of econamic contraction and inventory de stocking certain customers may find that speed ond certainty of
arrival time 1s less important than when inventory levels were ight IF this is the case, such customers may choose ocean freight as a lower cost but slower
alterngative to arr freight In 2012, we expenenced a shift in our air fresght volumes to ocean fieight volumes perticolarly in Asia, which contributed to a
softening of our overall ar fresght volumes and negatively impacted tts marqins and net working capital requirements While these trends may to some extent
be cydical in nature, there can be no assurance that the trend from arr freight to ocean freight does not continue, ond we may not be able to prepare for or
predict future shifts in demand for porticular transportation services, which may have a matenally adverse effect an our business

Competition and consolidation In the industry

The contract logistics and freight forwarding ndustnes in which we operate are highly competitive and we expect them Lo remain so in the foreseeoble Future
If we do not have sufficient market presence or are unable to differentiate oursefves from our cormpetitors we may not be able to compete successfully against
other compantes If our competitors are able to obtoin mere favorable terms from suppliers offer more comprehensive services t6 customers or otherwise take
actions that could increase their competitive strengths including potentially through consobdation, our competitive position and therefore our business results
of operations and financial condition may be matenally adversely affected

Debt and covenants

Qur indebtedness contains a number of ¢ovenants thal impose significant operating and fincnaal restnctions on us, ncluding certain restnetions on our ability
to incur additionat debt pay dividends, make tnvestments and sell assets Qur senior secured credit faclities require us to maintamn a net secured first hen ratio
of no more than 40 to 10 Our ability to mamtain this ratio and to generate sufficient cash flow from operations to make scheduled payments on our debt
depends on arange of economiie competitve and business factors, many of which are outside our control

In addition, our indebtedness may require us to dedicate a substantia! portion of our cash flows from operations to the servcing of such indebtedness and
may matenally adversely affect the terms under which supphers prowide goods and services to us Qur flexibiity in planning for and reacting to changes in our
business or developments in market condibions may be hmited, and we may be more vulnerable to downturns n our busness or the economy, as a result of our

substantial indebtedness

If we are unable to meet our expenses and debt service obligations we muay be forced to take measures which could matenatly adversely affect our business
and financial conditian for exanple, we may be forced to reduce of delay business actmities and cupital expenditures sell assets obtain additional funding
restructure or refinance all or a portion of our debt (which moy be at tugher interest rotes or Impose covenants or other restrictians on us) or take other
measures If we are unable to meet our debt service obligations or If we fuil to comply with our debt covenants and aresulting event of default 1s not cured
or waved, our lenders may be able ta declare all outstanding bortowings to be due and payable or take other remedhal ections If our indebtedniess were to be
accelerated, we cannot assure you that our assets would be sufficient to repay such indebtedness in full and our lenders could foredose on our pledged assets

Information technotogy and operational systems

1n arder to manage our growth and improve our performance we must maintain and continuously improve our operational systems and processes In
addition we expect our customers will continue to demand more sophisticated and fully integrated mformation technology systems compatible with ther
own infermation technology environment Qur information systems must frequently interact with those of our customers and service providers and must
function ocross muluple temtones Our future success will depend on our abiity to employ software thot meets industry stondords and customer demands
across multiple terrtories ond to continue to upgrade ond develop our software to ensure it remains state of the ant The failure of the hardware or softwore
that supports our Information technology systems or the loss of data in the systems or the inabikty to access or interact with our customers electronically
through our websites could significantly disrupt customer workflows and cause econemic losses for which we could be held hable and that would damage
ouwr reputation If we fal to meet the dernands of our customers to mantamn and imprave our infarmatian technology and operatianal systems of if we fad to
protect against disruptions of our own and ouwr customers’ operotions we may lose customers, which could matenially adversely affect our business, results of

operations and financia! condstion

Credit nsk
We are exposed to credit nsk which 1s influenced mainly by the individual choractenstics of each customer The demographics of the Group's customer base,

includmg the default nsk of the industry and country in which customers operate, has tess of on influence on credit rsk CEVA's gedit policy determines that
each new custormer is analyzed ndividually for creditworthiness before terms and condiions are offered to the customer The Group's review indudes extemal
ratings where avalable and in some cases bank references Purchase limits are established for each customer and these Imits are reviewed penodically The
Group estabhishes an allowance for Impairment in respect of trade and other recevables Refer ta note 16 “Trade and other recewables for detarls of trade
receivables and provision for impawrment  For banks and financial Institutions only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of A from Standard &
Poor's or equivalent rating from Moody s are accepted Group Treasury trades with its defined elationship banking group unless trading outside this banking
group 1s required either for operational needs or provides significantly better terms and conditions
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Worldwide lows and regulations

The supply chaln management services we provide are requlated by various govemmental authorlties and are subject tolegdl requiresnents of varlous
countries and Junisdictions around the waild induding iegal obligations and prohibitions impesed by statute retutation, commaon law contract and other
legal sources A failure to comply with apphcable lows and regulations and matntain appropriate authonzations could result in substanual fines operatienal
restrictions or possible revoaations of autharity to conduct operations, which coutd have a matenal adverse impact on our business results of operations

and finenaal condition Future regulations or changes in exlsung regulations, or in the interpretation or enforcement of regulations could require us or our
customers to Incur addibonal capital or operating expenses or modify business operations to achieve or maintan comphance In addition due to the cross
baorder nature of our activities and the large number of countnes in which we operate, we must continually monitor our compliance with anti corruption,
trade control, and sanctions laws ond regulations induding the U S Forelgn Cosrupt Practices Act the U K. Bnbery Act and antitrust and competition laws
Recent yeors have seen o substantial increase i globa! enforcement of these kaws, with more frequent voluntary self disdosures by compantes industry wide
investigatrons and ciminal and avil enforcement proceedings by U'S and other government agenaes resultng In substantial fines and penalties We may
be subject to alminal and ovif penalties and other remedial measures os a result of any violation of appiicable anti comuption, trade control and sanctions
laws and regulations which could have a matenal adverse effect on our business results of aperations and financial condition While we have in place policles
and procedures relating to compliance with these laws there can be no assurance that our intemal policies or procedures will wosk effectively to ensure that
we comply with such anti coruption trade control and sanctions laws and tegulations all of the time o to protect us agoinst bability under such laws and
regulations for actions taken by our employees and third porty service providers with respect to our business

CEVA has global and regional tegal persoane! to maenage tegal nisks by keeping abreast of applicable laws and regulotions and by implementing, monitonng
and enforcing the Company s policies practices and procedures (including its commerdal practice poliaies, code of business conduct and other policies and
procedures) consistent with apphcable legal requirements) These efforts indude development and implernentation of the Company s comphance program
training in suppert of that program and aggressive management of legai and requlatory issues and risks as they anise i ktigation and other disputes These
efforts are designed to idenufy assess monltor and misimize legal /isks to the Company and thereby support compliance with applicable legal regurements

Owner-operator model

Our Freight Maragement operations 1n the United States rely prmarily on drivers who are independent contractar owner operators The owner operator
model ss periodically challenged by federal and state governmental and regulatory authorities Induding tax authonties, as well as by individual drnivers as
prvate plaintffs seeking to have dnvers redassified as employees rather than independent contractors We are currently subject to two putative dass actions
(one tn Colifornla and one in New York) as well as a regulatory action ansing out of an audit by Califoenia’s Employrment Development Department, each in
connection with the classification of independent contractor owner operators See note 27 Contingences” for further detals

If our Independent contractor dvers were Lo be deemed to be employees whether due to regulotory or judicial determinations or changes inapplicable
federal and state laws and regulations, It could among other things entitle drivers to relmbursement by us of certamn expenses end 10 the benefit of wage

and hour laws subject us to emplayment and withholding tax and benefit iabilities, significantly increase our unemployment compensation and workers
comnpensation poyments, and have other substantial negative financial tax and operationol impacts on our business and would requlre sigrificant changes to
how our Frelght Management operations are conducted As aresult ow operating costs could mncrease significantly and our busingss, results of operauions ond
finaneral condition could be matenally adversely affected

Currency fluctuation

As aresult of our global operatians, our business results of operations and financial condition may be matenally adversely affected by fluctuations in currency
exchange rates For example, we are subject to currency nsks because our revenues may be genetated tn different currencies from the currencies in which our
related costs are incurred, and because our cash flow moy be generated In currencies that do not match our debt service obligations [naddition our reporting
currency Is the Euro, and therefore cur reporting results cre subject to tronslotiono! nsks relating to currency exchange rate fluctuations Grven the volatihty of
exchange mtes, our fotlure to effectively hedge or otherwise manage such currency nsks effectively may materially adversely offect our finanaal condrtton ond
results of operations

Joint ventures

We have entered into joint venture arongerments m multiple junsdictions Under these arangements, our Joint venture partners hove cestaln nghts to exerase
control or influence over operations and decision making Therefore eur abilily to manage and develop these operations may be kmiled, and we may be
unable to prevent acttons that we believe are not wn our best interests or the best interests of the relevant jont venture The continued wiability of these joint
ventures depends on our relationship with and the cooperation of our jomt venture partners
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The duectors present their report and the audited financial staternents of CEVA Group Pic for the year ended 31 December 2012

CEVA Group Plc wos incorporated i Englond and Wales on 9 August 2006 At the date of this document the authonized ordinary share capital of £350 000 s
dvided into 350,000 ordinary shares of a par value of £1 each As at 31 December 2012, 349 999 ordinary shares of a par value of £1 each in CEVA Group Plc
are held by CEVA Investrnents Limited and one ordinary shere of o par vatue of £1is held by Lours Cayman Second Holdco Limited, which s in tum a wholly
owned subsichary of CEVA Investments Limited Accordingly as at 31 December 2012 CEVA Group Plcwas a wholly owned subsidiary of CEVA Investments
Limited

The nights of the equity holders of CEVA Group Plc are cantained In the Articles of Assoclation of CEVA Group Pic. CEVA Group Pic is managed by its directors in
accordance with those artides and in accordance with the laws of England and Wales

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

CEVA 15 one of the world s leading non asset based supply chain management companles and offers a broad spectrum of services based on market leading
Frelght Management and Contract Logistics expertise and capabilities alone or 1n combination CEVA designs, implements and operates complete supply
chaln solutions for multinational and torge and mediurm sized companies on a national, regional and global level CEVA operates a non asset based model
across all business unuts, with thed parties praviding the majority of the physical transportation and warehousing assets that CEVA manages and uses for the
benefit of ts customers The Integrated service offering spans the entire supply cham Freight Menagement services that include international alr, ocean and
domestic freight forwarding, customs brokerage and other vatue added services and Contract Logrstics services that induge inbound logistics, manufacturing
support outbound/drstribution logistics and aftermarket/reverse Jogistics As of 31 December 2012, CEVA's combined giobal network comprised over 1 000
locations utilizing a total of approximately 9 malton square meters of warehouslng space in over 160 countries supported by more than 49,000 employees

CEVA has built leading market positions by understanding its target industry sectors and applying extensive expertise to design and implement customized
logistics sotutions that address mdustry specific supply chain requirernents CEVA has deep expertise In @ range of industries Including Autermotive Consurmer
& Retail Energy Industnal and Technology CEVA s knowledge of customers supply chain functions and sector expertise creates competitive advantages for
1ts customers helps to develop more cost effective solutrons for them ond puts CEVA in a strong position to grow its business

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Refer to the operating and financral review on page 6 for a review of the business

For detauls of the principal nisks and uncertainties facng the Group tefer to page 11

We continue to strengthen our organization and invest in our growth markets while also focusing on trght cost management and controlling net warking
capital We believe these will be key aspects to dnve our business forward in the near and med:um term

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group reported a loss for the year ended 31 December 2012 of €674 milion (2011 aloss of €216 million)

No dividends were paid or recornmended during the year or up untl the sigring of this annual report

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS
During the year CEVA made charitable donations of €87 880 (2011 €96,617)

CEVA did not make any donations to a registered political party of other pohitical organization within or outside the EU or any independent election candidate
(2011 i)

OTHER DISCLOSURES
There are no significant differences between the market value and book vatue of land and bulldings for the Group The Group did not carry out any research
and development activities during the year

GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

In accordance with UK compony low and best practice, the directors are required 10 consrder whether It Is oppropnate to prepare the financial statements
under the gomng concern pnnciple CEVA prepares annual budgets five year forecests and regutarly supplements the budgets with quorterly forecasts dunng
the year After reviewing this information in conjunction with our available faalities and our commutrments to debt repayments as well as the finanaal
recapitalzation explained below, the Directors have concluded that the Group hos adequalte resources for the foreseeable future Therefore the Groug, and the
Company have continued to adopt the going concern basis In the preparation of the financial statements

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
On 2 January 2013 CEVA Logistics completed the sale of its Intermedtate Bulk Container Business (see note 29 Events after balance sheet dote )

0On 3 Apnl 2013 CEVA Group Pic announced o financiol recapltalization ptan that would reduce substantsally CEVA s overgll debt andinterest costs as well as
Increase iquidity and strengthen its capltal structure {the “Recaprtalization or Recap ) On 2 May 2013 the Recapitalization successfully desed The Recap will
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enable CEVA 10 belter serve its customers accelerate its growth throughout the world and fund the development of new supply chain products and services
The Recapitalization will reduce consolidated net debt by more than €1 2 billion {exduding intercompany debt with CEVA Holdings LLC), reduce annual cash
interest expense by aver £130 million or approximately 50% further strengthen our Iiquidity with €165 milion of proceeds from equity capital from our new
shareholders, and provide access to additional iquidity up to €65m through the financing commitment from one of owr largest Institutional westors CEVA
will utilize the new money for mvestment in its business pian

following the Recepitalization, CEVA Holdings LLC { Holdings ) became the ultimate parent company of CEVA [n the Recap Apollo s equity interests in CEVA
Inwestments Limited were ehminated ond Apollo aoquired a minonty stoke in the equity of Holdings thiough exchanglng CEVA debt it held and through the
cash putchase of equity However, Apollo acquired control of Holdngs threugh contractual orrangements

Please refer to note 29 “Events ofter balonce sheet date” for further details

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of CEVA Group Pic consists of one executive and six non executive directors Gareth Turmer resigned as director on 13 December 2012
The directors ond ther remuneration are disclosed innote 7 Personnel expenses” There have been no changes in directors’ interests since the end of the
penod under review and the date of this report

At the date of this report the following persans ore members of the CEVA Group Pic Board of Directors

Marnn Schlanger (CEO, Chairman)
lohn Pattullo

Joshua Harns

Stan Parker

Paut Richardson

Tam White

Michael Jupiter

CEVA has agreed to indemnify Manan Schlanger, Joshua Harms Stan Parker Torn White ond Michael Jupiter for fosses relating to the services contemplated by
the management agreement with Apalio

BOARD COMPENSATION

Apollo and its affiliates have the pawer to controd us and our affairs and policies, inctuding the election of the majority of our directors ThHe majonty of
members of our Board are partners or employees of Apallo We have one Independent, non employee directar Independent non employee directors receive
the following annually a cash retainer of €75000 o cash retainer of €15,000 for service as chalrman of the Audit Committee €10 000 for service as chairman
of any other committee, €6 500 for service os @ member of the Audit Committee ond €5 000 for sennce as a member of any other committee All other

non employee directors except the Chalrman are pard on annual retainer of €39,000 but do not recerve any separate retainer for committee service All non
employee directars recelve €1 600 for attendance at any Board or Audit Committee meeting (provided that Audit Committee members are not compensated
separately for attendance at a 8oard meeting held on the same day as an Audit Committee meeting) Historlcolly, independent non employee directors were
awarded restrcted stock of CEVA fnvestments Lirited valued at €120,000 upon appointrent which vest one third on each of the third fowth and fifth
anniversary of appointment Other non employee directors recelved custornary equity incentives Including opbions to purchase shares of CEVA Investmenits
Limited The Chaumnan recewed a retorner of €20 000 per month until October 2012

EMPLOYEES

CEVA has developed and deployed a dversity and indusion program led by the global diversity council Diversity 1s about understanding and apprectating
differences - the vanety of perspectives opinions and conlributions Lhot we each brung to the business while inclusion is about leveraging diversity to create
an environment and culture that 15 welceming collaborative and productive By embracing diversity and induston CEVA is better equipped to understand
demographnes ond thus thrive iIn o globol morket CEVA s employees are a key osset to the business and CEVA's goal 15 to ottract, mouvate and retain the
highest performing workforce in the industry In order to realize CEVA's full potential the best talent, from any background 15 allowed to nise to the top

Cne of the focus areos In our global diversity and indusion program is disability Applcations for employment by disabled persons are atways fully considered
bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and obilitles of the opplicant concerned In the event of an employee becoming disabled every effort 1s made to
ensure that thelr employment with the Company continues and the appropnate training Is arranged 1t 15 the policy of the Compony that the training coreer
development and promation of a disabled person should, os far as possible be identrcal to that of @ person who does not suffer from a disabdity

CEVA has adopted policies and processes that are designed to support effective recriitment retention and imcentivization of skilled employees and managers
to fulfdll their roles in the orgaruzation CEVA provides employees with competttive salary pockoges with incentives tied to the operational objectives of the
Company and the relevant subsidiary as well as to peformance targets

Our performance measurement systemn for Management level employees 1s deslgned to provide those employees with regular feedback on thetr perfarmance
and to encowroge the best work perfarmance possible

Consultation with employees or thew repeesentatives has continued at alt levels with the aim of ensuning that thet views ore taken into conslderstion when
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decisions are made that are lkely to affect their Interests and that all employees are aware of the finanaal ond economic performance of their business
units and of the Company gs a whole Communecation with ali employees continues through online and printed 1n house newsletters frequent bulleling
the global Intranet and indudes two way feedback mechanisms

POLICY AND PRACTICE ON PAYMENT CF CREDITORS

CEVA agrees to terms and conditions under which business transactions with supplers are conducted [t 1s CEVA s policy that provided a supplier Is
complying with the relevant terms and conditions Induding the prompt and complete subrmission of all spedfied documentation payment will be
made in accordance with the agreed terms

It Is Group policy 1o ensure that suppliers know the terms on which payment will take place when business Is ogreed The average number of days that
payables were outstanding was 71 days for 2012 and 69 days for 2011

SHAREHOLDERS
Our substantial shareholders at 31 December 2012 are disdosed innote 28 Related party transactions  of the finanidl statements

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

As required by Sectron 418 of the Companies Act 2006 the directors of CEVA Group Pic have approved this report and confirmed that so far as each
director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information (being information needed by the aucditors in connection with preparing their gudit repart)
of which the Company s guditors are unaware and that they have token all the steps reasonably required to be taken as a director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit Information and to establish that the Company s auditors are aware of that information

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The independent auditors, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP hove indicated then willingness to continue i office, and a resolution that they be re

appointed as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the annual general meeting

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF CEVA GROUP PLC
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financal statements In accordance with applicable low and regulations

Company law requues the directors to prepare finanaal statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the
Group financia! statements wn accordance with International Finanaal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Uruon, and the parent
campany financial statements In occordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and applicable law) Under company low the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a tiue and faw
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company ond af the proft or loss of the Group and the Company for that period In prepanng these
finanaal statements the directors ore required 1o

= select suitable accounting peflcies and then apply them consistently
» make judgments and accounting estimates that ore reasonable and prudent
« state whether [FRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union (and [FRSs 1ssued by 1A58) and applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,

subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained In the Group and parent company finanoal staternents respectively
» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis untess it s nappropnate to presume that the company will continue In business

We publish our annual financal statements on our website at www cevalogistics com The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company s transactions and disclose wath reasonoble accuracy at any time the financial position of
the company and enable them to ensure that the finanoal statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Graup and hence for toking reasonable steps for the prevention ond detection of froud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the malatenance and integnty of the company s website Leglslation in the Urited Kingdom geverning the preporation
and dissernination of financia! statements may differ from legisiation in other jurisdictions

By order of the Board

Marvin O Schlanger
Drrector

2 May 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

£ millions YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Note 2012 2011
Before Before
specific  Speaific specific  Speafic
items  items’ iterns  Items’
Total Total

Revenue 5 7,224 - 7,224 6,895 - 6,895
Work contracted out {3711) {3,711} (3516) (3516}
Personnel expenses 7 (2.036) (30) _ (2086) (1944) (22)  {1.966)
Other operating expenses (1,226) (48} {1274) (1114) (54) (1168}
Operoting expenses exduding depreciation, amortization and impairment (6,973) (78) (7,051) (6,574) (76} {6,650)
EBITDA 251 (78) 173 n {76) 245
Depreciation amortization and impairment 1213 (182} (312 (494} {170 (170)
Operating income 69 {350 {321 151 (76) 75
Finance income (iIncluding foreign exchange movements} 9 5 5 15 1 16
Fingnce expense (induding foreign exchange movements) 9 (316) (37) (353) (282) (282}
Net finance income/(expense) (including forelgn exchange movements) 311) {37) {348) (267) 1 (266)
Loss before Income taxes (242) (4270 (659) {116) {75) {151)
Incomne tax expense 10 (19 7 {12) {32) 7 {25}
Loss for the yeor from continuing operations (261)  (420) (681) (148) (68) (216}
Altnbutable to

Non controlling interest b 2
Equity holders of the Company {685) {218}

Loss for the year (681) (216)

' Refer to note 6 Specific items for detaiks

The accompanying noies are an integrol pert of the consohdated financial statements
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Comprehensive Income

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

€ milllons
2012 2011
Before Befare
spedific  Specific specific  Specific
Items  items' items  [tems'
Total Total

Loss for the year from continuing operations

(261)  (420) (681)

(148) {68) {216)

Other comprehensive Income

Net investment hedges 9 - 9 (36) - (36)
Currency transtation adjustment 29 - 25 {4) - (4)
Actuarial galns/{iosses) on retirement benefit obligations (24) - {24) (7} . {7}

Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of Income tax

(247} (420} {667)

(195) (68) (263)

Attributable to

Non controlling interest 1 1
Equity holders of the Company (668) {264)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 1667) {263)

' Rafer ta nole & “Speqficitems” for detalls

The above amounts are net of income tax expense recognized 0 other comprehensive income of €1 mithon (2011 nll)

The accompanying notes ore an Integral part of the consolidated financal statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

€ millions AS AT 31 DECEMBER
Note 2012 2011

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 12 1,521 1999
Property plant and equipment 13 256 309
Deferred income tax assets 4 6 13
PFrepayments 35 35
Other non curent assets 17 13
Total non-current assets 1,835 2,369
Current assets

Inventory 15 15 23
Trade and other receivables 16 1087 1,042
Prepayments 46 47
Accrued mcome 214 187
[ncome tax recewvable 7

Cash and cash equivalents 17 257 217
Assets held for sale 18 125 4
Total current assets 1,751 1,520
TOTAL ASSETS 3,586 3,889
EQUITY

Capital and reserves attnbutable to equity holders

Share capital 20 1 1
Share premium 382 382
Other reserves 402 {135}
Accurmnulated defioit {1 608) (923)
Attributable to equity holders of the Company (823) (675)
Non controlling interest 10 9
Total Group equity {813) {666)
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabflities

Bomowings 21 2563 2809
Deferred Income tax habilities 14 61 86
Reurernent benefit obligations 2 114 94
Prowvisions 24 60 63
Other non current labilities 30 25
Total nen-cumrent hablirties 2,828 3,077
Current liabilities

Bomrowinys 21 125 103
Provisions 24 65 63
Trade and other payables 15 1,366 1 306
Income tax payable 5 [
Liabnlities held for sole 8 10

Total current habllities 1571 1,478
TOYAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,586 3,889

The accompanytng notes are an integral part of the consolidated finanaial statements

The finanaal statements on pages 17 to 65 were approved by the Board of Directors on 2 May 2013 and were signed on Its behalf by

Marvin O Schlanger
Director
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/ € millions YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
j Note 2012 2011
,J Loss before Income taxes (659) {191)
,' Adjustments for
! Shore bosed compensation 2 2
{' Depreciotion, amartization and impaiment 494 120
Finance income 9 (5) 4)
Galn on disposal of property, plant and equipment {2} 4)
Foreign exchange (gains) and losses 9 16 {12)
Finance expense 9 337 282
Change in provisions
Retirement benefit obligations 22 (9) {8)
Provisions 24 (2) {10}
Changes in working capital
Inventory 15 8 1
Trade and other receivables 16 {58) 35
Prepayments and occrued income {28) a3
Trade and other payables 25 69 (11}
Changes 10 non culent prepayments (12} (30}
Changes in non current accrued liabilities 4
Cosh generated from operotions 165 n7
Interest and other finanang cost pard (286} {230
Net incorne taxes paid 10 {31} (30
Net cash from operating activities {172) {43)
Acqursitions 1
Copital expenditure (101) {73)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 17 12
Interest recelved 2 5
Net cash used In investing activities (81) {56)
Repayment of borrowings 21 (818} {72}
Proceeds frorn non current borrowings 21 928 95
Proceeds frorm current borrowings 21 180 74
Net cash from financing activities 300 97
Change in cash and cash equivalents 47 (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 217 216
Fareign exchange impact on cash and cash equivalents (7} 3
Cash and cash equivalents ot end of penod 17 257 217

Refer tonote 21 Borrowings™ for detalls of non cash changes in bonowings

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financio! statemnents
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![ Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

j Attributable
to equity Non- Total
i Share Share Other Accumulated holders of  controlling Group
| € millions capital  premium  reserves” deficit the Company interest equity
. Balance at 1 January 2011 1 382 {89) {705) (411) B {&03)
: Currency translation adjustment (3} (3) (1) {4}
! Nel investment hedges {36) (36) {36)
1 Actuarial losses on retirement beriefit obligations (7} 7 (7)
, Loss attributable to equity holders for the year {218) {218} 2 (216)
Balance at 31 December 2011/ 1 January 2012 1 382 {135) {923) {675) 9 {666)
Currency transigtion odjustment 29 29 (3) 26
Netinvestment hedges 9 9 9
Capital contribution {note 21} 523 523 - 523
Agtuanal losses on relirement benefit obligations (24) (24) - (24)
~ Loss attnbutoble to equity holders for the year {685) {685} 4 {687)
Balance at 31 December 2012 1 g2 402 {1,608) {823) 10 {813)

* Includes total currency translotion adjustroent of €(51) mithon {2011 €(80) mwlhion)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolldated fiinanoa! statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
CEVA Group Pic (the "“Company ) and its subsidiaries (together the Group® or CEVA Group') design Implement and operate complete end to end Freight
Manogement and Contract Legistics solutions for muttinationa! and large and medium sized companies on local regional and global level

CEVA Group Pic was Incosporated on 9 August 2006 in Englend and Wales as o public company with hmited iability The address of its registered office s
20 22 Bedford Row London WC1R 4]S, United Kingdom

The immediote parent of CEVA Group Pk at 31 Decemnber 2012 wos CEVA Investments Limited o company incorporated in the Cayman [slands The ultimate
controliing party of CEVA Group Plc i1s Apollo Globa! Management LLC { Apolto )

At 31 December 2012, the Company had senror secured juntor priofty semor secured, and senior notes listed on the Global Exchange Market of the Insh Stock
Exchange

These Group consolidated financial statements were authorzed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 2 May 2013

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The prinapal accounting policies applied In the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below These polices have been consistently
opplied to all the years presented unless otherwse stated

21 Basis of prepanation

On 2 May 2013 the Company completed a major financial recapitalization as explained in note 29 “Events after balance sheet date  The consoldated
financial statements of CEVA Group Pic have been prepared on a going concern basss in eccordonce with International Finanaol Reporung Standards (IFRS) as
odopted by the European Union and [FRIC interpretations The consolidated finanaal statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, as
maodified by the revaluation of financial assets and finanaial habilities {incud:ing denvative tnstruments) at falr value through profit or loss

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group s ac¢ounting poliies The areas involving o higher degree of judgment or complexity or areos
where assumptions and estmates are significant to the consolidated finanual stoternents are disdosed innote 3 “Cnlica occounting estmates and
Judgments”

The Group s opefoting segments are its Freight Management and Contract Logistics businesses which are the main focus of the Group's chief opernting
declsion maker { CODM ), the Executive Boord of CEVA Group Plc {the "Executrve Board ) This is the peimary way i which the CODM s provided with financal
inforrnation The Group's tnternal orgamzation and management structure is also aligned o the two businesses From a practical perspective the Group also
manages s operatrons on a reglonal bosis All reporting to the CODM analyzes performance by Freight Management and Contract Logistics business actiity,
and resources are allocated on this basis Disclosure has been included in the segment note to reflect these operating segments As additional information the
group has aiso provided geographical information on Its results With effect from 1 Jonuary 2013 our geographical organi2ation below the operating
segments has changed Current regional segments Northem Ewrope and Southem Europe Middle East and Afiica have been combined Into a new region
Europe and rest of world The old Northern Europe afong with [bena (Spam/Portugal} Ialy and CEVA Ground Europe will become part of a singte European
managerment stiucture The reporting lines for Turkey/Greece, Middle Exst/North Afnca/Central Asio and Sub Saharan Africa will be grouped as rest of the
world and have a separate management structure The geographicalinformation in note 5 indudes 2012 end 2011 on the basss of the old geographical
reglans

Presentation of financial informaton

The Group's consolidated Income statements and segment analysis separately idertify operating results before specific items Specihic items are those that In
management's judgment are exceptional by virtue of their size nature or iInodence and therefore are separately disdosed on the face of the consolidated
income statements 1n determining whether an event or transaction ts speafic, management considers quantitative as well as qualitatve factors such os the
frequency or predictabliity of occurrence This is consistent with the way that financial perfarmance Is rmeasured by management and reported to the Board of
Directors and assists in praviding a mecningful analysis of the operating results of the Group Management believes that presentation of the Group's resuits in
this way 1s relevant to an understanding of the Group’s finanaal performance Furthermare the Group considers a columnar presentation to be appropricte as
it improves the danty of the presentation and is consistent with the way that finencial performance is measured by management and reported to the Board of
Duectors Speaific tems may not be comparable to simitarly titled measures used by other companies 1tems thaot have been considered to be speafic items
indude ntegration and separation costs, gans and losses on Indmduel debt transactsons business restructwning programs asset imparment charges and
antitrust investigotion costs Specific tems for the current and pror year are disclosed in note &

Adjusted EBITDA 15 @ key financlal measure used by management to assess operational performance It exdudes the mpact of speafic tems  Previously this
measure of performance was called EBITDA before specfic tems  EBITDA or *earmings before interest, tax, depreaation and amortization (s nota
measurement of performance or hquidity undes IFRS and should not be considered as a substitute for profit/ (loss) for the yedar, operating proflt, net income or
ony other performonce measures derved i accordance with IFRS or os o substitute for cash flow from operating actvities as o measure of CEVA s
performance Because not all companies calculate EBITDA identically the presentations of EBETDA In this annual repert may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures of other companies
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New and amended standards adopted by the Group
There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year beginming on or after 1 January 2012 thot would be

expected to have a matertal Impact on the Group

New standards and Interpretations not yet adopted
A numbes of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual penods beginming after 1 January 2013 gnd have not

been applied in prepanng these consolidated financial statements
+ 14519, "Employee Benefits was amended in June 2011 This amended requires the Group to replace Interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a
net tnterest amount that Is caleuloted by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit llability {asset) The amendment to IAS 19 well not have any
materal impact on the Group s pension liability expenses and disclosures and wilt be adopted from 1 Janwary 2013
« Amendment to I[AS 1 Finanaal statement presentation regarding other comprehensive income The main change resu'ting from these amendments s a
requirement for entities to group iems presented in other comprehensive income {OC]) on the basis of whether they ore potentially reclassifiable to profit
of loss subsequently (reclassificotion adjustments) The amendments do not address which items are presented in OCl
« IFRS 3 Financral Instrurnents , addresses the dasstfication, measurement and recagrition of finoncial assets and financial labilities TIFRS 9 was 1ssued In
Novemnber 2009 and October 2010 It replaces the parts of [AS 39 that relate to the dassification and measurernent of financid instrurnents IFRS 9
requires financial assets to be dassified into two measurement categories those meosured as ot farr volue and those meosured at amortized cost. The
determination is made at imual recognition The classificotion depends an the entity s business model for ronuging its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characierstics of the instrument For finanoal habilitres the stondard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements The maun change is
that 1n cases where the farr value option 1s taken for financial habilities the part of a farr value change due ta an entity's own credit risk 1s recorded in other
comprehensive Incorne rather than the income staternent, unless this creates an accounting mismatch This standard has not been yet endorsed by the EU
and 15 not expected to have a materal impec on the Group's consolidated finonadl statements
= [FRS 10 Consolidated finanoial statements  builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determuning factor in whether anentity
should be induded wathin the consclidated financiol statements of the parent company The standard provides additional guidance to ossist in the
determination of control whese this is difhicult to assess. The Group is yet to assess IFRS 10 s fedl impact which it wall be required to adopt from 1 January 2014
= [FRS 11 Jont amangements’, requires a more reallstic reflection of joint arrangements by focusing on the nights and obligations of the parties to the
arangement rather than its legal form There are two types of yoint arrangement joint operations and Joint ventures Jomt operations anse where a joint
operator has rights to the assets and obligations rekiting to the arrangement and therefore accounts for its share of assets lighilities, revenue and expenses
Joint ventures anse where the joint venture has nighlts to the net assets of the arrangernent and therefore equity accounts for Its interest Proportional
consolldation of joint ventures 1s no longer allowed 1AS 28, “Investments In Associates and Jomt Ventures' and 1AS 27 “Seporate financial statements wese
amended as a cansequence of the issuance of IFR5 11 The Group s yet to assess full Impact of those changes which # will be required to adopt from 1
lanuary 2014
« 1FRS 12, 'Disclosures of interests in other entities”, indudes the disciosure requiremnents for all forms of mterests in other entities incdluding Joint
arangements, ossocictes special purpose vehides and other off balance sheet vehicles The Group s yet to assess IFRS 12 s full impact and Intends to
adopt IFRS 12 no later than the accounting penod beginning on or after 1 January 2013
« IFRS 13 Far value measurernent , aims to improve cansistency and reduce complexity by providing o predise definltion of forr vakue and a single source of
fair value measurement end disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs The requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not
extend the use of farr value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be apphied where Its use Is already required or permitted by other standards
within IFRSs or US GAAP This stendard, whiuch is applrcable for 2013 15 not expeded to have a material impact on the Group s consohdated financiol staternents

These ore no other [FRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are nol yet effective that would be expected to have o material impact on the Group

22 Conschdation

Subsidianes
Substdiarles are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating pohicees generally accompanying a sharehalding of more

than one hotf of the voting rights The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are cumrently exerasable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity Subsidarles are fully consalidated from the date on which control is tronsferred to the Group They are

de-consolidated from the date that control ceases

The Group uses the acqursition method of acoounting to oceeunt for business combenations The consideration transferred for the acguisition of a subsidiary 1s
the far value of the assets transferred, the liabiities incurred ond the equity interests 1ssued by the group The consideration transferred includes the falr value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent considerabion arrangement Acquisition related costs are expensed asincuried Identifiable assets ocquired
and habilies and contingent liabiities assumed in a business combination are measured initrally at therr falr values at the acquisition date The Group
fecogmzes any non contealling intesest in the acquire ot the non controlling interest s proportionate share of the acquicee’s net assets The excess of the cost
of acqursition over the fair value of the Group s share of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwill

Intercompany transactions balances and unzealized goins on transactions between Group componzes are efiminated Unrealized tosses are also eimingted
Accounting policies of subsidianes have been changed where necessary 10 ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

Joint ventures
Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group hos Joint control, established hy contractual agreement end requinng unanimous consent for

strateqic financial and operating decisiong
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The Group s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for by proportionate consolidation The Group cornbines its share of the joint ventures’
individual income and expenses, assets and liabilties and cash flows on a hine by hine basts with similar itemns n the Group s financial staterments

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non controlling interests as transactions with equity ewners of the group For purchases from non controliing interests the
difference between any consideration pard and the relevant share acquired of the camying vatue of net assels of the subsidiary 1s recorded in equity Gains or
losses on disposals to non controlling interests are giso recorded in equity

When the Group ceuses to have contro! or significant influence any retained interest in the entity 1s remeasured to its fair volue with the change in carmying
amount recognized m profit or loss The fair value Is the initial carrpng amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associote jomt venture or finanaal osset Inaddition any amounts previously recogruzed in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or kabilities This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other
cormprehensive income are redassthed to profit or oss

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50 % of
the voting rights Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initiclly recogrized at cost The Group's
investment In assoaates includes goodwill identified on ocquisition net of any accumulated impairment loss

The Group’s share of its associates’ post acquisition profits of losses is recognized in the Incomne Statement and its shave of post acquisition movements In
other comprehensive income 1s recogmzed 1n other comprehensive incorne The cumulative post acquisition movernents are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the nvestment When the Group's share of losses in an assocate equals or exceads its interest in the assoaate induding any other unsecured
recevables the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has tncurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the assoaate

Unrealized gains on transoctions between the Group ond its associates are elrminated to the extent of the Group s interest in the assocrates Unrealized losses
are eliminated unless they provide evidence of an impaiment of the asset transferred Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the pohicies adopted by the Group

Dilution gains and losses ansing m investments in assoaates are recognized m the income statement

If the ownership interest in an associate 1s reduced but sigrficant influence 1s retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recogrized in
other comprehensive income will be redassified to profit o loss where appropriate

23 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the CODM The CODM who Is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identdfied as the Executve Board which makes strategic decisions 1n addition,
wformotion from o geogropiweal perspecuve hos olso been presented

Inter segment pricing 1s determined at an arm’s length basis

Segment results assets and (labiibies include itemns directly attnbutable to o segment os well as those that can be allocated on o reasonable basis Unallocated
itemns maoinly comprise coiporate cost centers bomowings and income bax assets ond hobilities

Segment caprtal expenditure 15 the totaf cost incurred during the pertod to acquire property plant end equipment and intangible assets other than goadwall
which s disclosed separately

24, Forelgn currency translotion

Functional and presentation cumrency

ftems included in the finanaal statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the phmary economic environment i which the
entity operates (the functional currency ) The consolidated financial staternents are presented in Euros (‘€') whichis the Company s functional and the
Group s presentation currency  All values are rounded to the nearest mullion except where otherwise indicated

Transactions and balances

Fareign currency transactions i the Group s entities are translated into the functional currency of the entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions Forergn exchange gains and losses resutting from the settlernent of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and labiiles denominated in foreign currencies are recognized 1n profit ond loss of the entity concemed

Group companies

The results and financial position of all Graup entities (none af whuch has the curency of o hypennflationary ecenomy) that have @ functional currency
different from the Euro are translated into Euro as follows

a}  assets and habxhities for each Consolidated Balance Sheet presented are transloted at the clesing rate ot the date of that bakince sheet
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b} income and expenses for each Consolidated Income Stotement are Lranslated at average exchange rates ond
¢) adll resuling exchange differences are recognized os ¢ separate component of equity

When the settlement of @ monetary item recelvable from or payable to o foreign operation rs nelther planned nor kkely in the foreseeable future, foreign
exchange gains and losses arlsing from such a monetary Itern are considered to form part of a net investment i a foreign operation and are recognized In
other comprehensive Income and presented in the tanslation reserve in equity Where a subsidiary that Is a foreign operation repays such a quas-equity loan
and there 1s no change in the parent s percentage shareholting, the Group betieves that this does not represent a disposal or partial disposal and hence does
not tronsfer the accumulated forelgn exchange gains or losses in equity to the income statement when this ocours

On consolidation exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of borrowlngs and other cutrency
instruments designated as hedges of suchinvestments are taken Lo other comprehensive income When a foreign opertion is disposed of o sold exchange
differences that were previously recorded in other comprehensive income ore reclassified to profit and loss as part of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwill and farr value adjustments arising on the ocquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habilities of the foregn entity and translated at the
dosing rate of exchange

25 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the foir value of the consideration recelved or receivable for the sale of good's and services in the ordinary course of the Group s actvities
Revenue 15 shown net of value-added tax and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group

The Group recogmnizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it 1s probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group
This 15 usually when goods and seraices have been delivered but 1s dependent upon the contractual terms ogreed with the customer

Freight Management revenue 1s derved from International ar ecean and domestic fresght forwarding, customs brokerage deferred ar and pick up and
delivery and other volue added services Revenue is recorded in gross terms when acting as an indirect carrier Revenue isrecorded nel of transportation costs
and frelght insurance prermiums when acting as a carrner's agent.

In Freight Management the Company s primanly a non asset based carner and as such owns only imited transportation assets The majonty of alr and ccean
freight revenue is obtained through the purchase of transportation services from direct {osset based) carners and the resole of those services to customers as
an Indirect carrfer, such that the Compaony issues customers a contract of carriage Revenues related to shipments are recognized based on the termsn the
contract of camage, primanly when goods reach their destination

Alr and ocean freight forwarding revenue is also generated when acting as a carrier s agent Such revenues campnse commissions and fees earned for the
services performed and are recognized on completion of those services Revenues refoted to customs brokerage and other senices provided at ongin or
destination are recogrized on completion of the services

Revenue in Contract Logistics represents the revenue from services to third porties related to contracts for supply chain management warehousing and
distnbution activities Revenue 1s recognized net of trade discounts, credit notes and taxes levied on soles when the serve is rendered based on the contrct
with the customer

Accrued income represents goods delvered and services rendered which have not yet been invoiced

26 Work contracted out
Work contracted out represents the cost of third party transport providers that we utilize 10 provide services to our customers

27 Other opemting expenses
Dther operating expenses Indudes cost of matenals rental expenses maintenance and sepalr charges professional fees and other miscellaneous expenses

Other operuting incame of mil {2011 €4 mithion) representing insurance recetpts and other sundry income has been netted aganst other operating expenses
on matenalty grounds

28 Leases

Leases in which a significant pertion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are dassified as operating leases Payments made under
operating leases {net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight tine basrs over the period of the lease

Leases of property plant and equipment where the Group has substantkally alf the risks and rewards of ownership are dessified as finance leases Finance
leases are capltahized at the lease s commencement at the lower of the folr value of the leased property and the present value of minimurm lease payments

Each lease payment is allocated between the licbility and finance charges so os to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges are inctuded in borrowings The interest elerment of the finance cost Is charged to profit or loss aver
the lease period $0 as to produce a constant pernodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the habllty for each penod The property, plant and
equ:pment acquired under o finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the useful Life of the asset and the lease term
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29 Finance income and expenses
Finance income comprises interest incomne on funds mvested changes i the fair value of financret assets at falr value through profit of loss and gains on the

purchase of financial liobilitles Interest tncome 1s recognized s It accrues (n profit or loss

Finance expenses comprise Interest expense on bosrowings and changes in the falr value of finandal assets at fair vatue through profit of loss Bomowing costs
on gqualifying assets are capitakized All other borrowing costs are recogmized In profit or [0ss using the effective Interest method

Foresgn curency gains and losses are presented on a net basis

210 Income tox
Income tax expense compnses current and deferred Income tax Income tax expense is recogrized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive Income or directly In equity In this cose the tax 15 aso recognized in other comprehensive ncome or directly In equity respectively

Current tax Is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rutes enacted o substantively enacted at the reportng date and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred income tax 1s recognized using the balonce sheet labiity method prawiding for temporary differences between the comying amounts of assets ond babilities
for finanaol reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purpases. Deferred income tax s not recognized for the following temporary differences the nitial
recognition of assets or habdities in a transaction that Is ot o business combinetion and that affects neither occounting nor taxable profit of loss ond tifferences
relauing tamvestments in subsidiones and jointly controlled entities to the extent thet 1t s probable that they will not reverse In the foreseeable future In oddition
deferred income tax 15 not recognized for toxable temparury differences ansing on the inrtid recognition of goodwill Deferred income tax s measured at the tax wates
that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
Deferred income tax ossets ond habllines ase offset if there 15 alegally enforceable nght to offset cument tax hakxlities and assets and they relate to ncome toxes levied
by the same tax authonty on the same taxable entity or on different tax entities, but they intend to sette current tax liabities and assets on a net basis or therr tox

assets and habibises will be reahzed simuttaneously

A deferred Income tox asset s cecognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available agamst which the temparary difference can be
utilized Deferred income tax assets are reviewed ot eoch reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related benefit wall be

reahzed

Defemed income tax 15 not provided on the unremitted eamings of subsidiories where the timing of the reversal of the remitting temporary difference Is controfied by
the Group and it 1s probable that the tempormry difference wall not reverse In the foreseeable future or where the remitiomce would not glve nse to incrementd tax

habhties or 15 not taxable

2 11 Intanglble assets

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the falr value of the Group's share of the net identifiable ossets of the acquired subsidiary ot

the date of acquisition Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiarles is included 1n Intangible assets Goodwilll 1s tested annually for impalrment of more frequently if
there are indications thot goodwill might be mparred and carned at cost less occumulated impaument losses Any impaiment is recognized immed ately as
an expense and s not subsequently reversed Goins and losses on the disposal of an entity inchude the carrying amount of goodwil relating to the entity sold

Goodwll s ollocated to cash generating units for the purpose of impalrment testing The allocation Is made to those cash generating unlts or groups of
cosh generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination m which the goodwill arcse identfied according to operating segment

Contractual customer relationships
Contractual customer relationships acquired n a business combination are recognized ot far value at the arquisition date The contractual customer

relationships have a finite usefutlife and are carried ot cost less accumulated amoartization Amortization 1s calculated using the straight line method to allocate
the cost of the contractual customer relationships over thelr esbmated usefid lives of between 10and 20 years

Other intangibles
Other intanglble ossets mamly compnse computer software, icenses and brand names

Development costs that are directly attnbutable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group are recogized
as Intangible assets when 1t can be demonstiated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits there are adequate technical
financal and other resources to complete the development and to use the software product and the expenditure atnbutable to the software product dunng
sts development can be reliably megsured Costs assoctated with mamtaining computer software programs are recogrized as an expense as Incurred
Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amortized over thelr esumated useful lives on overage three years

Separately acquired heenses are shawn at historicol cost. icenses acqusred in o business combination are recogrized at farr value at the acquisition date
Licenses have a finite usefuilife and are carrled ot ost tess accumulated amortization Amortization Is caleulated using the stralght line method to aliocate the

cost of licenses over their estimated useful lives of three to five years.
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Acqurred computer software licenses are capitelized on the basis of the costs incumed to ocquire and bring o use the spealllc software These costs ere
amortized over thelr estimated useful Iives winch do rot exceed thiee yeass

Other iIntengible ossets that are acquired by the Group, which have finlte useful ives are measwred at cost less accumulated amartization and accumulated
impairment losses Other Intangible assets ore amortized on a suaight line basis over their estmated useful lives of three to 20 years

212 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and imparment losses Cost indludes expenditures that are
directly attnbutable to the acquisition of the asset Purchosed software that s integral to the functronolity of the related equipment is capitalized as part of the
cost of that equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment 1s recogmized in the carrying emount of the item if it 1s probable that future economic
benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured rehably The garrying amount of the replaced part s wiitten off The
costs of the day to day sericing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred

Depreciation
Land 1s not depreciated Depreciation on other assets is caladlated using the straight line method to write off thelr cost less ressduol volues over thew useful
economic iives (of period of finance lease if shorter), as follows

« Buildings 10 50 years
« Plant and equipment 2 10 years
« Other 3-10 years

The ossets esimated residual valves and useful economic lives are reviewed and adpusted if eppropriate, at each Bakonce Sheet date

An asset 5 carryng omount Is wntten down immediately to its recoverable omount if the asset s camying amount Is greater than its eshmated recovercble
amount,

Disposal
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property plant and equipment are determined by companng the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount
of property plant and equipment and are recognized in profit or loss

213 Impairment of nron-financial assets

Assets that have an Indefinite useful life for example goodwill ore not subject to amortlzation and are tested annudally or earlier i response to 4 triggening
event for Impaiment Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 15 recognized for the amount by which the asset s carrying omount exceeds its recoverable
amount The recoverable amaunt 1s the higher of an osset s faw value less costs to sell and value inuse For the purposes of assessing Impaiment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately Identifiable cosh flows {cash generating units) Non finanaal assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the Impaument ot each reporting date

214 Financial assets
Classification
The Group dassifies Its financial assets Into two categones {a) at fair value through profit or loss ond (b) loans and recevables

The dassification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired Management determines the dassification of its financial assets at
Initigl recogriion

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at for value thiough profit of loss are finanaal assets held for trading A financial asset s dassified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term Derivatives ore dassified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges Assets in this category are dassihed
s current assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and recervables are non derivative finanaal assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted i on actve market. They are included in
current assets, except for matunties greater than 12 months after the Balance Sheet dote These are classified as non cument assets The Group's loans and
receivables compnse trade and other receivables and cash end cash equivalents in the Consclidated Balance Sheet

Recogmit:on and measurement
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recogmized on the trade date — the date on which the Group commits 1o purchase of sell the asset Finandiel
assets carned at folr value through profit or loss are imtiafly recogmized at fair value and transaction costs ase expensed in the Consolidated Income Statement
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Financial assets are derecogrized when the rights to recenve cosh flows from the investrnents hove explred or have been transferred and the Group has
tronsferred substantially afl risks and rewards of ownership Financiol assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequenily carried at foxr value Loars and
recevables are carned at amortized cost using the effective Interest method

Gains of losses ansing from changes in the falr value of the ‘finanadl assets ot far value through profit or loss' category are presented in the Consplidated
Income Staterment within net financial expense i the period in which they arise Dividend Income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15
recognized in the Consolidated Incorne Statement when the Group's night to recerve payments is established

If the market for a financial asset Is not active {and for unlisted secunties), the Group estabishes farr value by using valuation techniques These include the use
of recent arm s length transactions reference to other Instruments that are substantally the same discounted cash flow analysts and option pricing modets,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as Iittle as possible on entity speafic inputs

215 Derivative finanoal Instruments and hedgling activities

The Group can hold dervative finanaal instruments to hedge its foreign cumency and nterest rate sk exposures Embedded dervatives are separated from
the host contract and accounted for separately If they are not dosely related that is If the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the
embedded dervative would meet the definition of a demvotve and the combined instrument 15 nol measured at farr value through prafit or loss

Derivatives are recogmized initially ot fatr value attnbutable transaction costs are recogmized in profit or loss when incurred Subsequent to nitial recognition
dervalives are measured ot fair value with changes recognized immediately in the profit of toss The Group does not apply hedge accounting for its dervotive

financd! Instruments

The Group uses certain borrowings to hedge net investments The Group apphes hedge accounting to foregn currency differences arsing on net mnvestment
between the functional cursency of the foreigh operation and the Group s functional currency (Euro) regardless of whether the net investment is held directly

or through an intermediate parent

The Group documents al the inception of the hedge the relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item as wefi as its risk management objectives
and strategy for undertaking the hedge The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis of whether the hedging
nstruments that are used are highly effective n offsetting changes in the hedged items  spot rate revaluation attributable to the hedged risk

Any gain or loss on the hedgling instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge 1s recognized in other comprehensive income The gam or loss relating
to the ineffective portion 15 recognized in the ncome statement. When the hedged foreign opesation s disposed of or sold the relevant amount in the
translation reserve 15 transferred to profit o1 Yoss as part of the profit or loss on disposal

216 Inventaries
Inventortes are stated at the lower of cost and nel realizable volue Cost is determined ustng the first In furst out (FIFD) method Net reallzable value is the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less opplicable vanable selling expenses

217 Trade recervables
Trade recelvables are recagnized initially ot fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less prowision for

impavmnent A provision for impaurment of trade receivables Is established when there 1s obyectve evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due occording Lo the onginal tenms of the receivables Sigaificant finanaal difficultees of the debtor and default or delinquency In poyments are
considered indicators that the trade recelvoble ts imparred The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s camylng amount and the present
value of esumated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal effectve interest mte The carrying amount of the asset Is reduced through the use of an
allowance occount gnd the amount of the loss 1s recognized In profit or loss When a trede receivable is uncollectable, it 1s written of f agamst the allowance
account for trade recefvables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wnitten of f are credited to profit of foss

Inanon recourse factonng arrangement when the Group has transferred substontially all the asks and rewards of ownership of the recevables, the trade
recelvables are derecognized m therr entirety 1n @ fectorng of recervables with recaurse the group recogizes the factoring arrangement as a financing
transaction, thet is a liabilty 1s recognized for the amounts receved from the foctor

218 Cash and cosh equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents indudes cash in hand deposits held at call with banks other short term highly iquid investments with onginal maturites of three

manths or less and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Consolduted Balance Sheet to the extent that
there 15 no nght of offset and no practice of net setttement with cash balances

219 Assets (or disposal groups) held for safe

I the carrying amount of the non current asset {(or disposal group} will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use
the Group will dassify the asset (or disposol group) as held fo: sale For this to be the case, the asset, or disposal group must be avallable for immediate sale In
its present condition subject only to tenms that are usutl ond customary for the sale of such assets (or disposal group) and its sae must be highly probable

Upon dassification the assets (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of their camying amaount and fair value less costs to sell




29

——— —
b -

CEVA Group Plc Annual Report 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 20 Share caplital
Ordinary shares are dassfied os equity Incremental costs duectly ottributable to the Issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognized as o deduction

from equity net of any tax effects.

2 21 Botrowings
Borrgwings are recognized nitially at farr value, net of transaction costs Incured Borrowlings are subsequently stated at amortized cost any difference

between the proceeds (net of ransaction costs) and the redemplion velue 1s recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method Financal habilibies are derecognized when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished

Borrowings are classified as current habilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer seitlement of the iability for ot teast 12 months after the
Balance Sheet dote

Fees pawd on the establishment of loan facilitres are recognized s transaction costs of the loan to the extent that It rs probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down In this case the fee Is deferred untl some draw down oceurs To the extent there ks no ewidenca that it s probable that some or all of the
foclity will be drawn down the fee Is capitalized as a pre payment for iquidity services and amortized over the pediod of the facility to which it refates

A fingnaal hability s removed from the balance sheet when 1t 1s extinguished that 1s when the obligation s discharged cancelled or expired An exchange
between CEVA and a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms 1s accounted for as an extinguishment of the onglnal financia! kabibty and
the recognition of a new financial hability If the new terms are not substantially different the transaction is regarded as a modification

If a portion of a financict hablity 15 purchased the previous carmang amount of the financial liabillty is allocated between the portion that continues to be
recognized and the partion that is derecognized based on the relative fair values of those respective portions on the date of the repurchase The difference
between (o} the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognized and (b} the consideration pald, induding any non cash assets transferred or liabilities

assumed, for the part derecognized are recognized in profit of loss

222 Employee benefits
Pension obligations
The Group operates a number of defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes

{0} Defined contnbution plans
Adefined contribution plan Is a post employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have na legal er

constructive abligation to pay further amounts Obligations for contnbutions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized os o personnel expense in
profit or loss when they are due Prepoid contributions are recogruzed as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction In fisture payments s avallable

(b) Defined benefit plans
Adefined benefit plan s a post employment benefit plon other than a defined contnbution plan The liability recognuzed in respect of defined benefit pension

plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation ot the Balonce Sheet date less the farr valve of plan assets, together with adjustments for
unrecognized actuanal gains or losses and past service costs The defined benefit obhgation 1s caleutated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method The present value of the defined benefit obligation 15 determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by the yield
ot the reporting date on AA ¢redit rated bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to matunty

approximating to the terms of the related pension liability

All actuarial gains and losses arlsing from defined benefit plans have been recognized immediately in other comprehensive income Interest expense on the
pension obhigation and return on assets are recognized In finance Income and expense

Other long term employee benefits
Other long term employee obligatons indude long senice sabbatical or jubllee leove, long term disability benefits and deferred compensation not payoble

within 12 months after the end of the penod The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the penod of employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit pension plans except for actuorial gains and losses which are recorded In profitand loss These ebligations are valued

annually by independent qualified actuaries

Tesmunation benefits
Termination benefits are payable when emplayment s termnated by the Group before the normal retrement date, or whenever on employee accepts

voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recognizes tesrmination benefits when It has demenstrobly committed to terminate the
employment of current employees according to a detarled formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or provided termination benefits as a result of an offer
made (o encourage voluntary redundancy Benefits faling due mare than 12 months after the Batance Sheet date are dscounted 1o therr present value

Share based compensation
The Group operates equity settled share based compensation plans, under which CEVA Group Pic recelves semces from employees as consideration for equity

instruments (opions} of CEVA Investments Lirmited The falr value of the employee services received in exchonge for the grant of the options Is charged by
CEVA Investments Linited and 1s recogmized as an expense by CEVA Group Plc The total amount to be expensed Is recognized by teference to the farr value of
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the options granted, excluding the impact of any non market service and performance vesting cond:itions Non market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest The total amount expensed s recogrized over the vesting penod, which 1s the peniod over
whuch all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied At each Balance Sheet date the Group revises its estimates of the number options thet are
expected (o vest based on the non market vesting conditions The Group recognizes the impact of the revision to origingl estimates if any, in profit or loss

Short term benefits
Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted bosis and are expensed as the related service 1s provided

A liabihity 15 recognized for the amount expected 10 be paid under short term cash bonus of profit sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obiigation can be estimated reliably

223 Provisions

A provision s recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal of constructive obligation that con be estimated reliably ond it 15 probable
that an outflow of econoric benefits will be required to settle the abligation Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows ata
pre tox rate that reflects cument market assessments of the tme value of money and the nsks speafic to the Lkabiity

Provistons for insurance represent an estimate, based on histoncal ¢xpenence of the uwlumate cost of settling gutstanding claims end daims rmourred but not
reported at the balance sheet date on certan risks retained by the Group

2 24 Trade payobles
Trade payables are recognized initsally ot fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial staterents i accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnaiples under IFRS requires the Group to make estimates
judgments and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets kabilities revenue and expenses and the disdosure of contingent assets and
liabilities in the financial statements Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and other factors induding
expectations of future events that are behieved to be reasonable under the circumstances

The resulting accounting estrrmates will, by defimbion rarely equal the related octual results Adtual results may differ significantly from these estimates the
effect of which 15 recognized in the peniod in whech the facts that give rise to the revision become knawn The estimates Judgments and assurmptions that have
a significam risk of causing a materiol adjusiment to the carmying amounts of assets and liabitities withun the next financiol year are outlined below

31 Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually or earlier in response to a triggenng event whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in notes 2 11 “Intangible assets and 2 13 imparment of non finanoal assets” The recoverable amounts of cash generating units hove been
determined bosed on value in use colculations These colculations require the use of estimates and assumptions consistent with the most up to date budgets
and plans that have been formally approved by management. Refer to note 12 Intangible assets for the key assumptions used for the value in use calculotions

32 Income taxes

The Group 15 subject to iIncome taxes in numerous junsdictions Significant judgment 1s required in determining the worddwide provision for Income taxes There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax deterrmination s uncertain dunng the ordinary course of business Where the final tax
outcome of these matiers is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tncome tax
provisions in the period in which such determination 1s made

33 Retwrement benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuanal basis using @ number of assumptions The
ossumptions used in determuning the net cost (income) for pensions indude the discount rate Any changes in these assumptions will impact the camying
omount of pension obligations

Defined benefit schemes are reappraised annually by independent actuones based upon octuanal assumptions Signrficant judgrment s required in
determining these aeduanal assumptions Refer {onote 22 Retrement benefit obligations’ for the prnaipat assurmptions used

3 4 Provisions and contingent hlabilities

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending in vanous junsdictions Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it 1s often difficult to predict
the fina! outcome The cases and claims against CEVA ofien raise difficult ond complex factual and legal 1ssues These ore subject to many uncertainties and
complexities induding but not imited to the facts and arcumstances of each particular case and daim the junsdicuon and the differences in applicable low
in the normal course of business we consult with lego! counsel and centan other experts on mattess reloted to hugation

We recognize a provision when 1t 1s determined that an adverse outcome 1s probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estmated In the event
that an adverse outcome 1s possible and an estimate 1s not determinable the maiter is disclosed Refer to note 27 Convngencies™ for further information
regarding contingent habitties
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4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group s operating activities expose it to o vanety of financral nsks, such as market nisk (including foreign currency exchange nisk, Interest rate nsk and
commodity price nisk) ared:t nsk and kquidity nsk The Group s overall nsk management program focuses on the unpredictability of finanaal maorkets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group s financial performance The Group uses derivatve financic! instruments to hedge certaln risk exposures
Finenoal nisk management Is conried out by Group Treasury under policses approved by the Boord of Directors. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges
financial risks N dose co aperation with the Group s operating units The Board provides wntten prinaiples for overall risk monagement as well as wrtten
policies covenng specific areas such as foreign exchange nsk intesest rote sk credit nsk the wse of denvative financial Instruments and non dervative
finanaal instruments and investment of excess kquichity Although the Group enters into denvative contracts for nsk hedging pusposes we do not apply hedge
accounting for such denvative financial instrurnents

The following anclysis pravides quantitative information regarding our exposure to the financial risks described above There are certain limitations inherent in
the analyses presented primanly due to the assumptron thot rates change in a parallel fashion and mstantaneously In addition the analysis Is unable to
reflect the complex market reactrons that nommally would anse from the market shifts assumed

{a) Market risk

Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group operctes mtematonolly ond i1s exposed to forewgn currency exchange risks arising from future commerciol tronsoctions recognized assets and
habllities Investrments and divestments in foreign currencies other than the Euro the Group s reporting currency Although we enter into hedging
arrangerents and other contracts in order toreduce our exposure to currency fluctuations, these measutes may be inadequate or may subject us to increased
operating or finanang costs

The main currengies of our extema! hedges are the Uruted States dollar Chinese yuan end Euro Significant ccquisitions are typcatly funded in the cutrency of
the underying assels We have established policies which require Group companles to manage theu fareign exchange nisk against their functional currency
Group comparues are required to report therr refevant foreign exchange nisk exposure to Group Treasury To manage ther forelgn exchange risk ansing from
future commeraial ransactions and recognized ossets and habilittes entities in the Group use forward contracts transacted with Group Treasury Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercral transactions or recognized assets of habllities are denominated in @ currency that 15 not the entity's functional
currency

CEVA has certaln investments in foreign operations whose net assets are exposed to foreign cusrency transiatron nisk Currency exposure ansing from the net
assets of the Group s foreign operations s maraged primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant forelgn currencies

The main exchange rates are shown below

2012 201

Yeor end clasing Average Year end closing Average

British pound 08126 08111 08380 08676
US dollar 13197 12856 12934 13907
Chinese yuan 82299 81126 81530 89879

A five percent strengthening of the following currenaes against the Euro at 31 December 2012 would hove Increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown below This analysls assumes that all other vanables in particular interest fates, remaoin constant The analysis s performed on the same
basts for 2011

€ millions 2012 2010
Effect on profit Effect an Effect on profit Effect on

before tax equity before tax equity

Brivsh pound 1 7 1 []
US dolar (6) 59 {6) 65
Chinese yuan 1 13 1 13

A five percent weakening of the above currenaies aganst the Euro at 31 December 2012 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above on the basis that oll other veriables remain constant

Cash flow and falr value Interest rate dsk
Interest rate nsk is the risk that unexpected interest rte changes negatively atfect the Group's results cash flows and equity Hedging activities are meant to
protect CEVA ogainst changes m Interest rotes
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The table below shows the interest rate profile of the Group s interest beaning finanaat instruments as of 31 Decernber 2012 and 2011 {refer to note 21
“Bomowings™ fot further details)

€ millions 2012 2011
Carrying value Carrying value

Fixed Rate Instruments

Loan notes 1837 21

Varioble Rote Instruments

Fingncial Liakihties 851 741

Total 2,688 2912

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased {decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below This analysis
assurmes that al! other varlables, tn particulor forelgn curmency rotes, remaournt constant The analysis was performed en the same bas:s as for 2011

€ milllons 2012 2011
Effect an prafit Effect on prafit
Change of Intersest rate before Tax before Tax
Euro +100 basis points (2) {2)
Euro 100 basis points 2 2
US dolitar +100 basis points {5 (4)
US dolllar 100 basis points 5 4
Commodity risk

As a supply chain company CEVA s exposed to the nsk of an increase In the price of fuels prinapally diesel gasoline The Group typically hos an abidity to pass
on fuel price increases to customers and has not therefore entered Into any contract to hedqge any specific commodity risk

(b) Credit risk
The collectability of accounts recervable 15 assessed on amonthly basis, where the method of determining the reduction is tallored to the speafic business

environment and takes into consideration the history of the reporting untt The Group Is focusing strongly on the cash generating capaaty of its businesses and
acknowledges the importance of strong credit control which 1s monitored through perlodic detailed analysls of overdue trade receivoble balances

Credit risk anses from cash and cash equivalents, denvatwve finanaia! Instruments and deposits with banks os well as the nsk that counterparties fail te meet
therr contractuat payment obligations through insolvency or defoulkk as well as aedit exposures to custorners The credit risk of a denvatrves portfolio overlaps
market sk since 1t 1s the replocement value of the portfolio that the Group s likely to lose if the counterparty fails [n order to reduce legal risk resuluing from
dervatives CEVA strives to have on International Swops and Derivative Assoaation agreement in place before entenng into denvatives For banks and finanaal
institutsions only independently rated parties with @ mimimum rating of A * from Standard & Poor's or equivalent rating from Moody s are accepted Group
Treasury only trades with its defined relationship banking group unless troding outside this banking group Is required either for operational needs or provides
significantly better terms ond conditions

The carrying amount of financral assets represents the maxmum credit exposure The maxsmum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date was

€ milllons 2012 2011
Loans and receivables 1105 1046
Cash and cash equivclents 257 217
{c} Liquidity risk

Liuidity risk & the nsk that the Group does not have sufficent heodroom {cash and cash equivalents plus centrol gedit faclities desanbed n note 21 Borrowangs )
avadable to meet both our day to-day operating requiremnents ond debt senaang obligations (interest and debt repayment} As Is typical of global Integrated
comparues such as CEVA, cash is often held in vartous jarsdictions In which the Group aperates and may nat be immediatety avalloble to Group Treasury Group
Treasury ritigotes iquidity risk by seeking to ensure that CEVA tes odequate funding at Its disposal ot off times and hielping facilitate occess to the money markets
and copital markets This Inciudes refationship management with all finanoal stakeholders such as banks rating agencies and debt Investors Refer to note 21
“Borrowings” of the consolidated finonaal statements for detads on the Group s covenonts and borrowings for the refinanang transaction that hos taken place in 2012

Asat 31 December 2012, CEVA Group Pl had €257 million (2011 €217 mulltan) in cash on its Corsolidated Belance Sheet [n additron to this cash CEVA Group
Pk has access 10 €422 mitlhon (2071 €280 million) of centrat credit faciibies described in note 21 Borrowings™, of which €383 mill:ion (20711 €207 million) was
drawn Total headroom at 31 December 2012 was therefore €296 million (2011 €290 million) Following our Recapitaleation which dosed 2 May 2013,
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we furthes suengthened our hguidiny wih €185 mithon of poceeds from equity topio) from ow Tew shirehoidens, os tisousted funines mnote 29 “Evenis ofter
balance sheet date

The tabte below analyses the amaunts of interest bearing borrowings and trade and other payables Into retevont matunty groupings based on the remaining
penod from the Bolance Sheet date to the contractual matunty date

€ millions 2012
Present value Future min
af miimum imum lease Bank Interest on Trade and
lease payments Interest payments Loan notes borrowings horrowings other payables
Less than 1 year 8 3 1 45 247 1,358
15 years 22 9 3 757 B80S 849
Thereaftes 18 14 32 1001 102 201
Total 48 26 74 1,758 952 1,297 1,358
€ millions 2011
Present value Futuce oun-
of minimum imum lease Bank Interest on Trade and
lease payments Interest payments Loan notes borrowings borrowings other payables
Less than 1 year S 3 8 98 258 1306
15 years 21 " 32 520 806 916
Thereafter 16 14 30 1,021 S04 208
Total 42 28 70 1,541 1.408 1,382 1306

The interest on borrowings with a variable Interest rate has been calculoted by using the year end rate The tables above exclude aogregate minimum
operating lease payments Lotaling €1,063 muthon (2011 €1 123 milion) that are disclosed in note 26 Commitments

Capital management -

The Group s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group s ability to continue as a going concern In order to provide returns for shareholders,
benefits for other stakeholders and to matntain an optimal cepital structure to reduce the cost of copita! Seenote 29 ‘Events after balance sheet date for
details of the Recapitahization which dosed on 2 May 2013

fs ot 31 Decermnbes 2017 the Group hod o copltal structure wivich utihzed o fugh proporion of strsctwied delit (o egusty, whvch was histoncaly odopted
because debt fmancing was viewed os 0 cheaper source of capital than equity finarking During the year the Group undertook a debt and equity funded
financing os described in note 21 ‘Borrowings”™ The structure of owr debt and facilities ks a combination of long term debt secured to finance our acquisitions
In 2006 of the TNT contract logistics business and in 2007 of the EGL Inc freight management business and medium term foolities which are ava:lable to
support shorter term hquidity cequirements The majority of our interest rates re fixed and as of 31 Decernber 2012 there were no material debt repayments
due until November 2015

Fair value estimation
The farr value of the derivative finanaa Instruments at 31 December 2012 s nil (2011 nil) As ot 31 December 2012 there were foreign exchange and Interest
dervative contracts with a notional amount of €10 milhon (2011 €29 milkon)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The chief operating decision maker s the Executive Board The Executive Board reviews the Group's intemal reporting to ossess performance and allocate
resources Management bas deterrmined the operating segments bosed on these reports

The Executive Board considers the eperations fram o business perspective In addition Information from a geographical perspective has also been presented

Operating segments
« Freight Management including the provision of intemational arr oceon and domestie freight forwarding customs biokerage, deferred alr and pick up and

detivery and other volue added services
= Contract Logstics including the prowision of inbound logistics, manufacturing support, outbound/distribution fogisties and aftermarket logrstics

Additsional Information - geographice!

= Ameficas {induding the United States of America Canada, Brazd Argentina and Mexico)

» Asta Pacific including Australio China Singopore, Thalland Malaysia and India)

+ Northem Europe {induding the United Kingdom Ireland, the Nordics Benelux, France Germany and Eostern Europe)
= Southern Europe (including Italy Spain Turkey and Greece), Middle East and Africa
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Segment resulls, assets and liabilities indude ltems directly attnbutable to @ segment as well os those that can be oflocated on a reasonable basls Unallocated
Iterns manly comprise borrowings and income tax assets and kabidities The Group s customer base k hughly diversified, with no indvidually significant custormner
The Executive Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on eamings before interest, tax, depreciotion and omortization { Adjusted
EBITOA’, previously known as EBITDA before specific items) Interest income and expenditure are not Induded m the resuit for each operating segment that Is
reviewed by the Executive Board The information provided Lo the Executive Board s measured in @ manner consistent with that in the financial statements

Operating segments
The segment results for the year ended 31 Decernber 2012 ore o5 follows

€ milhons 2012
Freight Contract
Management Logistics Total

Total segment revenue 3344 3909 7,253
Inter segment revenue (2 (27} (29)
Revenue from external customers 3342 3,882 7,224
Operating expenses excluding depreclation, amortization and impairment (3240} (3733} {6973)
Adsusted EBITDA 102 149 251
Speaficitemns {78)
EBITDA 173
Imparment (158) (154) (312
Depreciation ond amortization (182)
Operating income (321)
The segment assets and habilities at 31 Decernber 2012 and the capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows

€ milllons 2012

Freight Controct
Management Logistics Unallocated Total

Total assets 1860 1712 14 3586

Total liabilities bl 1,036 2772 4399

Capital expenditure 24 77 101

The reported Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2012 indudes €16 mifkion (year ended 31 Decernber 2011 €18 million) from joint ventures

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows

€ milllons 2011
Freight Contract

Manggement Logistics Total

Total segment revenue 3154 3764 6918
Inter segment revenue (2) (21) (23)

Revenue from external customers 3,152 3,743 6,885
Operating expenses excluding depreciation, omortizaton and impairment (3028) {3 546) (6,574)

Adjusted EBITDA 124 197 n
Speaiflc items (76)
EBITDA 245
Depreaation, amortization and imparment {170)
Operating income 75
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The segment assets and habilities at 31 December 2011 and the capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows

€ milllons 20N
Freight Contruct
Management Logrstics Unallocated Total
Total assets 2,037 1,838 14 3889
Total abilities 583 948 3024 4555
Capltal expenditure 20 53 - 73
Additional information - geogrophical
The geogrophical results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows
€ millions 2012
Southern Europe,
Asia Northern Middle East
Americas Pacific Europe and Africa  Total
Tota) segment revenue 212 2,125 1725 1,257 7319
[nter segment revenue (33) {16} (26) (20) (9%
Revenue from external customers 2179 2,109 1,699 1,237 7224
Operating expenses excluding depreciation_ amortizatron and impairnient (2 210} {2021) (1623) (1,219) (6973
Adjusted EBITDA 69 88 76 18 251
Speafic tems (78
EBITDA 173
[mpairment (312}
Oepreciation and amortization (182)
Operating income {321)
The geographical assets ond habilities at 31 December 2012 and capstal expenditure for the year then ended are as follows
€ millions 2012
Southern Eurcpe,
Asio. Northem Middle East
Americas _ Patific Europe and Africa  Unallocated Total
Total assets 1110 975 839 648 14 3,586
Total kabilities 456 36 412 398 2772 4399
Capital expenditure 34 32 21 14 il




36

CEVA Group Plc Annual Report 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The geographical resudts for the year ended 31 December 2011 gre as follows

€ milllons 2011
Southern Europe,
Asla Northern Middle East
Americas Pacific Europe and Africa  Total
Total segment revenue 2,100 1942 1669 1,278 6989
Inter segment revenue {39) (16) {25) (14) {94}
Revenue from external customers 2,061 1,926 1,644 1,264 6895
Operating expenses excluding depreciobion, armnortizatian and impayment {1970} (1826) (1 566) (1212) _(6574)
Adjusted EBITDA Eal 100 78 52 3N
Specaific items {76)
EBITDA 245
Depreciation, omortization and mpanment (170)
Operating Income 75
The geographical assets and liabilities at 31 December 2011 and capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows
€ milllons 2011
Southern Europe,
Asia Northern MIiddle East
Amencas  Pacific Europe and Afnce  Unallocated Total
Toto! assels 1,239 1020 918 698 14 3,889
Total habiktles L45 306 384 396 1024 4,555
Capital expenditure 20 18 19 16 73

The entity 15 domoled in the United Kingdom The result of us revemse from external customers i the UK s €609 mulkon (2011 €567 milhon} in the United
States Is €1 588 million {2011 €1 447 milllion) In China is €998 million (2011 €857 mullion) and in Ttaly s €729 million (2011 €786 milion) The total
revenue from external customers from other countnies 15 €3 300 million (2011 €3,238 mithon)

The total of non current assets other than financial instruments deferred tax assets, post employment benefit assets and rights ansing under insurance
contracts located in the United Kingdom Is €197 milhon (2011 €227 millon) ond the totol of these non current assets located in other countries Is €1,628

milhon (2011 €2 126 mullion)

6 SPECIFICITEMS

€ millions 2012 2011

Personnel expenses 30 22

Other operating expenses 48 S4

Imparment 312

Finance Income (1)
Finance expense 37

Total {income) / expense 427 75

Personnel expenses
1n 2012, personnel expenses are largely refated to one time severance payments s a resu’t of site optimization and kbor claims incurred in relation to the cost

reduction programs imptemented by the Group, induding initial expenses of the new plan announced In November 2012

Personnel expenses in 2011 were largely one tme severance costs incuired i relghon Lo the cost reduction programs being implemented by the Group mamly
w Italy, the United Kingdem Germany Spain and The Netherlands
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Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses In 2012 and 2011 indude expenses related to the outsoyrcing and optimizing our finance processes and streamlining our

frelght management systerns os well as expenses related to the on going industry wide antitrust investigation It aso Includes expenses assoaated with

the disposal of the Intermediate Bulk Container Business in 2012

Impairment

Goodwill impairment charges of €312 million were recognized for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011 nfl} as a result of the annual goodwill
impairment testing These non-cash impalkrment charges were pnmanly driven by the impact on business valuations from sigmificantly lower forecasted
cash flows from revised intesnal S year projections, reflecting recent expenences and potential future challenging economic and competitive conditions

Finance expense
In 2012 the Group incurred costs and acceleroted amortization of copitalized debt ssuance fees in relation to the debt ond equity funded financing

transaction which was completed on 1 February 2012 (see note 21) which were recognized as a speafic ltem

7  PERSONNEL EXPENSES

€ millions 2012 201
Wages and salaries 1785 1,697
Employee benefits and soclal expenses 238 237
Pension costs  defined benefit plans (note 22) [ 7
Pension casts  defined contnbutron plans 29 23
Share options gronted to Directors and empleyees 1 2
Total personnel costs 2,066 1,966
Average number of people employed
The average number of persons (Induding executive directors) employed by the Group during the year was as follows
2012 2011
Freight Management 12016 13270
Contract Logistics 38 433 37467
Total 50,449 50,737
The above disclosure exdudes the total average headcount at Anji CEVA of 8 77410 2012(2011 9,848}
Directors and executive managemeni emoluments
€ thousands 2012 2011
Marvin Schlanger 333 3713
Joshua Harris 37 4,
Gareth Turner 32 44
Michael Jupiter 39 45
Stan Parker 36 45
Paud Richardson 100 121
Tom White 53 87
John Pattullo 1,123 1516
Other executive management 36 4899
5394 2,174

Directors and other executive management {(key management) emoluments indude salanies of €5 milion (2011 €5 milhon), accved bonus provisions of
nll (2011 €1 millhion) and share option expenses of nil (2011 €1 million) None of the directors have had pensions funded by the Group Other executive

management received €120 thousand (2011 €44 thousand) for pension related costs
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Share options granted to the Drectors and other execulive management are shown in the toble below

Number of share options
QOutstanding Weighted
Outstanding  Granted  Exercised  Forfeited ot 31 Decernbes  Granted  Exerased  Forfelted Outstondingat  averoge
at 1 January during the dunng the dunng the 2011/ dunng the dunngthe duringthe 31 December exerase
2011 yeor year year* 1 January 2012 year year year” 2012 pricein€
Marvin Schianger 10,000 10000 20,000 30000 6667
Joshua Harris 1,172 1172 - 1172 5000
Gareth Turner™* 1172 - 1172 1172 2015
Stan Parker 1172 - - 1172 1172 2015
Poul Richardson 800 - 800 800™
Tom White 6816 - - 6816 6816 8900
lohn Pattulle 47 400 47 400 {31,600 15800 10000
Other exequtive management 48 492 {13 678) 37.464° 6970 30494 5000
Total 117024 (13 678) 105,996° 20,000 (38,570) 87,426
Indudes changes i the composition of the other executive management during the year who had share opbons granted In prior years
Relates to restricted shares awarded to independent non-empiayee directors
" Resigned as director in 2012 but retained share options
8 AUDITOR REMUNERATION
Dunng the year the Group obtained the following services from its auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its assocuates
€ millions 2012 20N
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its gssocates for the oudit of the parent company
and consolidated finandal statements 2 2
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company s
substdiarles pursuant te leglslation \ 2 2
Fees payable to the Company's ouditor for other services .
Taxahon compliance sennces 1 1
Taxation advisory services 1
Services relating to corporote finance transactions t
All other non audit services 1
Total 6 7
Auditor remuneration 1s recognized in other operating expenses In the Consolidated Income Staternent
9  FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE
€ millions C_om 2011
Interest income on short term bank deposits 5 4
Net foreign exchange gains 12
Finance income 5 16
Interest expense on bank barrowings ' (255) (243)
Interest on flnance lease habilities (4} (3)
Net forelgn exchange losses {16)
Interest expense on retirernent beneft obligotions (3} {t)
Other finanoial expense (75) (32)
Finance expense ' {353) {282)
Net finance expense (348) (266)

Other financial expense mdudes the amortization of debt issuance costs of €42 milion (2011 €11 mullion)

Dunng 2012 the Group continued to define certain net investment hedge relationships whereby foreign exchange movements pertaming to these defined
relationships are recognized directly in other comprehensive Income rather than in profit and loss As at 31 Decernber 2012 €525 rulkion (31 Decernber 2011

€535 million) of borrowings was designated as a nel ivestment hedge
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

€ milhons 2012 2011
Current tox expense 20 42
Deferred tax expense (8) (17
Income tax expense 12 25

Income tax expense recognized i other comprehensive Income 1s €1 miflion (2011 mil)

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs frorn the theoretical amount that would asse using the tax rates apphcable in the United Kingdom on the

profits of the consolidated entities os follows

€ millons 2012 2011
Thearetical tax charge / {income) (164) 245% {51} 265%
Permanent differences

Non deductible other costs 2 (03)% 9 L%
Non deductable write off of goodwill 76 11 4)%

Non taxable repurchase of debt 11 {16}%

Difference between local and UK tax rate {18) {(27)% {i1) S8%
COther moverments

Deferred tax assets not recognized on iming differences 60 {90)% 34 (178)Y%
Deferred taxes not recogmzed on losses 55 (82}% 39 (204)%
QOther income 1ax expensef(benefit) (10) 15% 5 (24)%
Actual tax charge 12 {18)% 25 (130%

The 2012 effective tax rate 1s {1 8) % (20711 (13 0} %) The 2011 ond 2012 rate was impacted by uncertainty over the future utiization of losses The 2012

rate was also Impacted by the book write off of goodwlll and the company's debt and equity finanang

11 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Company did not complete any matenal agquisitions In 2012 gnd 2011

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Contractual
customer Other

€ millians Goodwill relationships intangibles Total
Net book amount at 1 January 2011 1,510 499 35 2,044
Additions 12 12
Amortization 71) (20} (91}
Imparment -
Transferred to disposal group dossified os held for sale
Exchange rate differences 0 4 34
Cosing net book amount ot 31 December 2011 1,540 432 27 1,999
Histonical cost 1556 176 278 2610
Accumuloted amortizatson and impairment {16) {344) {251) (611)
Net book amount at 31 December 2011/ 1 Jonuary 2012 1,540 432 27 1,599
Addivons 24 24
Amartization {73) (17} {50)
Impairment (312) (312}
Transferred to dispasal group daossified os held for sale (85) {n (86)
Exchange rate differences (9} (#) _ (14)
Closing net book amount at 31 December 2012 1134 354 3 1,521
Hictoncal cost 1462 in 301 2534
Accumutated amorlzolion and impairment (328} (417) (268) (1013}
Net book amount ot 31 December 2012 1,134 354 33 1,521
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Impairment tests for goodwill

As required by [FRS 3 goodwllis subject 10 ennual impairment reviews These reviews are coanled out using the following cntena An amount of goodwall s

ottiibuted to each of the operating segments Such operating segments are determmned to be o "Cash Generating Unit” (CGU) as determened by [AS 36

“Impairment of Assets” The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based on colculating its value 1n use The value in use 1s cakulated by applying
discounted cash flow modeling to management s own projections covenng a five year perlod Cash flows beyond the five year perlod are extrapolated ustng a
leng term growth rate of 2% which does not exceed the estimated long term GDP growth rates for the most relevant temitones in which the businesses operate

€ milllons 2012 201
Historical cost
At beginning of penad 1,556 1526
Transferred to dispasal group (85}
Currency retranslation _{® 30
At end of perlod 1,462 1,556
Accumulated impawrment
At beginning of perod {16) {16)
Charge for the year {312)
At end of period (328) (16}
Net book value at the end of penod 1,134 1,540
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December as aflocated to each of the Group s two identified CGUs 15 as follows
€ millions 2012 2011
Freight Management. 847 1,011
Contract Loqistics 287 529
Yotal goodwill 1,134 1,540

Managemant's five year projections have been prepared on the basis of strategic plans knowledge of the market performance of competitors and

management's views on achlevable growth 1n market share over the longer term

The mpawrment charges were pnmaidy drven by the Impact on business valuations from significantly lower cash flows kom cevised intemal projections

reflecting recent experiences and potentral future challenging economic and competitive conditions

The projections for Freight Management demonstrate @ robust market position however the uncertainty concerning the outlook for the economy around the

warld has suppressed the projections such that the remaining value of goodwill has been impaired down to €847 milllon

The revised projections for Contract Logistics mecorporate the increasing weaknesses In various key morkets particutardy in the Southern Ewopean economies

while also considertng manogement s octions on costs The remalning vatue of goodwill has been impalred down to €287 milion

Key assumptions
The key assumptions used in determining the value In use are

€ milhons 2012
Growth rate Pre-tax
beyond five discount
years rate
Freight Manegement 20% T61%
Contract Logistics 20% 141%
Long term growth rate

After five years of management projections, a long term growth rate into perpetuity of 2% has been determined by an estimated nominal Gross Domesuc

Product (GDP) growth rate
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Pre tax discount rate

The discount rates applied Lo cash flows 1s based on the Group’s weighted average cost of copetal (WACC) adjusted for mcome tax The WACC s calculated
based on 6 weighted overage of the post tax interest rates pald on our loans and a retumn on equity based on the equlty market nsk premium (that 1s the
requived increased return required over and above a nsk free rate by annvestor who ss investing in the markel os a whole) ond the nsk adjustment beta,
opphied to reflect the nsk of the Group relative to the morket as a whole The beta used 1s based on on average of the betas of what management considers to
be the most comparable histed logrstics componies

Projected EBITDA

The five year projections for Adjusted EBITDA have been prepared using strotegrc plans which Indude key assumptions for growth In sales and costs over this
penod These assumptions take into account knenwledge of the current markets in our Frelght Management and Contract Loglstics segments management s
views on the development of our services relative to the market and the impact of the cost reduction actmities that were communicated in our Quarter Three
2012 results announcement,

Budgetad capite! expenditure

The cosh flow forecasts for capilal expenditure are based on past expenence and indude the ongoing capital expenditure required Lo smplement new projects
and maintan existing odivities in our Contract Logrstics segment and grow and maintain our Freight Management network Capital expenditure includes cash
outflows for the purchaose of property plant and equipment and computer software

Net Working Capital (NWC) levels
Projections for NWC levels are based on the actual NWC needs of the Freight Management and Contract Logistics segments during the last three years

Result
Goodwill impairment losses of €312 million were recognized for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011 ni}os a result of the goodwill lmparrment testing

Sensitivities
A sensitivity analysis has been performed on each of the base case assumptions used for assessing the goodwill with other variables held constant
Consideration of sensiivities to key assumptions can evolve from one financial year to the next

The toble below shows the sensitivity impact of changes in key assumptians by CGU

€ millions 2012

freight Management Contract Logistics Total
Decrease in long term growth rate of 05% 43) (31) (74)
Increase in pre tax discount rate of 1% {88) {53) (T}
Decrease in projected EBITDA of 5% {74) {68) (142)
Worsening in the projected NWC levels of 10% {17) 2 (29}

Increase in projected copital expenditure of 10% {30) {82) {112)
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

tand and Plant and Under
€ miltions buildings equipment Other  construction Total
Net book amount at 1 Januwary 2011 130 133 56 15 334
Additions 1 29 20 1 b1
Disposals (1} {5} {6)
Deprecation (17) (37) (25} {79)
Exchange rate differences 2 2 (1) 3
Transferred to disposal group dessifled as held for sole () (4)
Transfers 10 1 1 {12)
Closing net book amount at 31 December 2011 129 123 54 3 309
Historical cost 222 326 182 3 733
Accumulated deprectation and impairment (93) {203) (128) (424)
Net book amount at 31 December 2011 /1 January 2012 129 123 54 3 309
Additions 15 33 23 6 77
Disposals {2) {10) 2) {14)
Depreciotion (18) {47) (27} {52}
Exchange rate differences 1 1 2
Transferred to disposal group classified as held for sale (1) {25) - (26}
Transfers 4 1 {5)
Closing net book amount at 31 December 2012 128 74 50 4 256
Histoncal cost 239 32, 205 4 772
Accumuloted depreciation and imparment (111) (250} (155) (516}
Net book amount at 31 December 2012 128 74 50 4 256
Finance leases
The following assets held under finance leases are induded in property plant and equipment
Land and Plant and
€ milhons bulldings equipment Other Total
Under finance lease 31 December 2011 30 11 1 42
Under finance lease 31 December 2012 30 17 1 L8

14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred ncome tax ossets and habilitles are offset when there is a legally enforceable sight to offset and when the defered income taxes relate to the same

fiscal authonity The amounts are as follows

€ millions 2012 2011
Belore offsets
Deferred income tax assets {51} (72)
Deferred income Lox hablities 106 145
Net deferred income tax liabliities 55 73
After offsets
Deferred income tax assets {6) {13)
Delerred income tax liabllities 61 86
Net deferred income tax liabllities 55 73
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The movement in deferred Income taxt assets and habllities during the year without taking nto cons:deration the offsetung of bafances within the same tax

Junisdiction s as follows

Deferred income tax assets
Goodwill Losses
and other cartled
€ mllions Pravisions Intangtbles forward Other Tota!
Balance at 1 January 2011 23 36 26 14 99
Transfers 11 {5) (9) (14} a7
Exchange rate differences 1 - (1)
Incorme statement effect {5) {7 1 1 (10)
Deferred income tax assets ot 31 December 2011 / 1 Janvary 2012 29 25 18 . 72
Transfers 9 (3) 3 1 10
Exchange rate differences ) {0 - 1 {1}
Income statement effect (6) (12} (13) 1 (30}
Deferred income tax assets at 31 Decernber 2012 k) 9 8 3 51
Deferred income tox Habilities
Property,
plant and
€ milhions equipment Intangibles Other Total
Balance at 1 January 2011 2 165 22 189
Transfers 5 {2} (20) (17)
Assets Held for Sale
Exchange rate differences - 1 {2) (1)
Income statement effect (3) (22) (1) (26)
Deferred income tax licbilities at 31 December 2091/ 1 January 20312 4 142 (1 145
Transfers 10 (12) 1 1)
Exchange rate differences - [{]] 1
Income statement effect {13) (24) {1} {38)
Deferred tncome tax ltabilities at 31 December 2012 1 105 - 106

Deferred tncosme tax assets are recognized for tax losses corned forward to the extent thot the reaiization of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is considered more fikely than not. The Group did not recognlze deferred mcome tax assets of €55 million (2011 €39 mullion) in respect of fosses
amounting ta €216 mefllon {2011 €178 milkon) that can be camned forward ogamst future taxable income for a perod between one year and an indefirte

period of time

15 INVENTORY

€ milhans 2012 2011
Raw matenals end supplies 12 7
Fimshed goods 3 16
Total Inventory 15 23

The prowision for inventory obsolescence Isml (2011 nll)

Movements in inventory are recorded m other operating expenses In the Consolidated Incorme Statement.
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

€ millions 2012 20M
Trade teceivables 1,050 995
Prowision for impairment of trade recervables (36} (32)
Trade accounts recelvable - net 1,014 963
VAT recervable 30 22
Other 43 57
Other receivables 73 79
Tota! trade and other recelvables 1,087 1,042

Other recervables indude amounts recesvable from insurance companies, government departments and from tax authornties
The fav volue of trade and other recevables approximates Its carnying omount
At 31 December 2012 non recourse factoring resitited in the derecogrition of €102 milion (2011 €93 mdlion) of trade recetvables

The Group hos habtiities of €158 millkon {2011 €113 million) related to factoring which it indudes in bank botrowings These relate to amangements in which
the Group remains exposed to some or all of the bad debt nsk related to these rade recevables Based on the borrowing bases and advance rates of these
arrangements over €190 rmullion (2071 over €143 million) of trade receivables ore factored pursuant to these arrangements The Group hos not derecogrized
these trode recevables as it may Incur losses In respect of poor collection performonce and retains the benefits of collections in excess of the foctorning habdities

During October 2012 certaln Australian subsidianes of the Group entered into a Recewvables Purchase Agreement wath o facility kmit of A340 mithon maturing
In September 2015 Recenables sold under this agreement are not derecognized and the related habilities are iIncluded in bank borrowings

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2010 certain US subsidiones of the Group ond a new subsidary CEVA US Recenvables, LLC (Unrestncted Subsidiary) of
the Group entered (nto agreements establishing an Asset Backed Loan (ABL) Fecility The obligetions of the Unrestncted Subsidiary under the ABL Facihty are
secured on a first pnonty bas!s by the currently owned and subsequently acquired ossets of the Unrestncted Substdiary mduding, but ot imited 1o all of the
trade recevables transferred to the Unrestneted Subsidiary by the US subsidiaries The tronsaction has been accounted for as collateralized borrowing {refer

to note 21 Borrowangs ) Following an event of default by the Unrestricted Subsidiary under the ABL Faailty loan agreement or if a specified hquidity event
occurs the lenders have the nght Lo receve the cash flows from the pledged receivables to repay the outstanding loans under the ABL Facility Absent an event
default or iquidity event the Unrestnicted Subsidiary will collect the recevables and all new receivables transferred to the Unrestricted Subsidiary by the US
subsidiartes will be cotlatera! Recervobles sold under this agreement are not derecognized and the related habiities are included tn bank borrowings

As at 31 Decemnber 2012 tode receivables of €196 milion (2011 €148 millllon) were past due but not impared These recetvables relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there 1s no history of default The ageing profile of trade recervables past due but not imparred 15 as follows

€ milhons 2012 2011
Past due O 30 days 109 8BS
Past due 31 60 days 32 24
Post due 61 90 days 16 14
Past due 91 120 days 10 7
Past due more than 121 doys . 29 18
Tatal 196 148

Despite our continued focus on collections i this area, our overdue receivables have iIncreased os a percentage of total recevables This was pnmanly driven by
an increase in the short term O 30 days past due category

The carrying amount of the Group s trade and cther receivobles are denominoted in the following curtencies

€ milltans 2012 2011
Euro 270 295
Us dollar 301 320
UK pound Sterling 61 64
Qther currencies 491 395

Total 1,123 1,074
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Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade recenvables are as follows

€ millions T 2012 20m
At 1 January 32 34
Charged o other operating expenses 11 6
Recewvables written off dunng the year as uncollectable {7} (6)
Unused amounts reversed (2)
Exchange rate difference

At 31 December 36 32

The creavion and retease of the provision for impoired recervobles hos been induded n other eperoung expenses in the Consohdated Income Swtement
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there 15 no expectation of recovery

The other classes within trade and other recelvables do not contaln imparred ossets
The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting dote 1s the carrying value of each dass of recesvables mentroned above

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

€ millions 2012 2011
Cosh ot bank 152 115
Current bank deposits 105 102
Total cash and cash equivalents 257 217

Cash and cash equivalents are gvailable for use by the Group Bank overdrafts are induded within interest bearing borrawings (note 21 *Borrowings )
18  ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE
A property located in SEMEA region that was dassified as held for sale as at 31 December 2011 was subsequently sold dunng 2012

The assels and kabilities related to both CEVA's Europeon Container Logrstics business and Asia Paaific Palfecon business (together fomming the Intermed:ate

Bulk Container Business) is presented as a disposal group held for sale following the commitment of the Group’s manogement in December 2012 to sell both

businesses This disposal group 1s presented in the Northern Europe ond Asia Puafic regions The completion date for the trarsfer was 2 January 2013

The assets dassified as held for sale are presented below

AS AT 31 DECEMBER

€ millions
M2

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwll 85
Customer relation 1
Property plant and equipment 25
Prepayments 1
Total non-current assets 113
Current assets

Inventory 4
Trade and other recenvables 8
Other current assets

Total current assets 12
TOTAL ASSETS 125
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The llabiittes dossified as held for sale are presented below

€ milllons AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2012

LIABILITIES

Non-current Habilities

Non cument borrgwings 1

Retrement benefit cbligations 1

Other long term habililies

Total nor-current hiabilitles 2

Current lichilities

Trade and other payables 4
Other current hakilities 4
Total current habilitres 8
TOTAL LIABILITIES 10

No imparrment lass was recognized on the non current assets dass!fied as held for sale
Please refer to Note 29 'Events after bolance sheet date for details on the completion of this transaction

19 JOINT VENTURES

The Group hos one sigruficont joint venture being a 50% Interest in Anp CEVA Autormative Logstics Cormpany Ltd @ company which 15 incorporated in Chino
and provides contract logistrcs sevices The following amounts represent the Group’s 50% share of the assets and labilities sales and results of the joint
venture They are induded using praporuenal consolidation In the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated income Statement of the Group

€ millions 2012 2011
Assets

Non current assets 28 27

Curtent assets 78 53

Liabilities

Current liobilities 76 45

Net assets 30 35

Revenuse 148 175

Depreciation and amortisation (2} {2}
Fianancial income 7

Other expenses’ (136) (100}
Profit/(loss) after income tox 10 20

Proportionate interest In Joint venture’s commitments 14 2

1 Included In other expenses is €4 millton (2011 €3 million} tax expense

The joint ventura had no contingent habilities as at 31 December 2012 (2011 nil)

20 SHARE CAPITAL

Number of ordinary shares € millions
1 Jonuary 2011 350000 1
issued dunng the year -
31 December 2010/ 1 January 2012/ 31 December 2012 350,000 1

At 31 December 2012 the authorized and issued share capital compnsed 350 000 ordinary shares (2011 350 000) There has been no movement in sharg
capital in 2011 and 2012 Ordinary shares have a norinal value of £1 each All issued shares have been pald in full
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21 BORROWIRNGS

The carying amounts and fair value of borowings ere as follows

€ millons 2012 2011
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fasr value
Non-current
Bank borrowings 818 835 1,278 123
Loan notes 1,705 1560 1484 1,291
Finance leases 40 40 37 37
Total non-current borrowings 2563 2435 2809 2,559
Cumrent
Bank overdrafts 98 a8 66 66
Bank borrowings 19 19 32 32
finance leases 8 8 S 5
Total current borrowings 125 125 103 103
Total borrowings 2,688 2,560 2912 2662
Unamartized debt issuance costs 70 79
Total principal debt 2,758 2,991

Non-current borrowings

The fair value of the non current Interest bearing debt has been presented using the avatlable market price at the balonce sheet date or otherwise using the
face value The serior bank debt s fair value bas been presented using 1ts face value as it 1s a private floating rate fociity, and the fair value of current debt has
been presented using its carrying value given its short term nature The average floating interest rate for the penod was 50% (2011 46%)and 57 % (2011
55% ) for Euro and for US doflar denorunated loans respectively

Current borrowings

The camying amounts of cumrent borrewings approximate therr fair value

Terms ond debt repayment schedule

Nominal Amount drawn at Amount drown at
Interest 31 December 31 Decemnber

Currency rate Matunty 2012 (mullions) 2011 {milltons)
Senlor secured focthbes tranche A (EUR) Eurg EURIBOR + 3% Novermber 2013 €64
Semor secured foahtses  tranche B (EUR) Euro EURIBOR + 5% August 2016 €103 €103
Senlar secured foolibes  tranche A (USD) US dollor USLIBOR + 3% Novernber 2013 $129
Senior secured foolibes tronche B (USD) US dollar LUSLIBOR+ 5% Augqust 2016 $485 $335
Semor secured foctibes  revolver (EUR) Euro EURIBOR + 4% Novernber 2015 €65 €40
Seruar secured faclities  revalver (LISD) S dallar Prime Rate + 1 5% Movermber 2015 $52
Flirst hien senior secured notes S dollar 8375% Decenber 2017 $775 3450
Fust and o half prionty llen secured notes US doflar 11625% October 2016 3210 3210
Jurnor pelonty sermor secured notes s dollar 115% April 2018 3702 3702
12% serior notes Euro 12% September 2014 €n €11
8 5% senltr notes Euro 85% Decernber 2014 - € 266
Extended seruor notes Euro 85% June 2018 - €73
12 75 senvor notes US dollas 1275% March 2020 $620
Seniof unsecured faality loans US dollar 975% August 2015 - $165
Semior unsecured facility extended loan s dollar 975% June 2018 $113 $629
Senior subordinated notes Euro 10% Decermnber 2016 - €81
Extended senlor subordinated notes Euro 10% June 2018 - €57
US ABL facihity US dollar USLIBOR+ (3% 35%) November 2015 $164 5142
Australian Recetvables facibity AU dollar BBSY+528% September 2015 ASL0
Bonk overdrafts Varlous Vanous Varigus €111 €66
Fingnee leose ligbihities Various Varigus Various €47 €42
Other kans Various Vanous Vanous €24 €50
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The carmrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies

€ milhons 2012 201
Euro 742 772
US dollar 1,832 2,073
Cther cumrencles 114 67
Total 2688 2912

Debt and equity funded financing In 2012

On 1 February 2012 CEVA Group Plc together with its parent CEVA Investments Limited { CIL ) completed a debt ond equity funded flnancing through

the issuance of US$325 million of 8 375% first hen senior secured notes due 2017 and US$620 milhon of 12 75 % senlor unsecured notes due 2020 The
proceeds together with cash on hand were used to redeem of repay oll of the £16&4 milllon of term loans maturing i 2013 under CEVA s semior secured
crednt faalitles, €266 million of 8 5% semor notes due 2014 US$165 millton of senior unsecured loan due 2015 and €81 miflon of 10% semor subordineted
notes due 2016 CIL also 1ssued over €850 mithon of new equity secunitres to Apollo which controls CIL in exchange for the contribution and subsequent
cenceflouion of €523 million of CEVA Group Pic debt thal is accounted for as a capital contnbution and €355 mulhon of CIL securittes previously hetd by Apolio
and Its affiliates The CEVA Group Plc debt that was exchanged consisted of US$516 million of sertor unsecured loan due 2018 €73 million of 8 5% senior
notes due 2018 and €57 milhon of 0% senlor subordinated notes due 2018 In addition we increased the size of the revolving credit facility under the senlor
secured faciliies by €100 millon to €179 millon These transactions resulted in the extension of motunties of CEVA Group Pic debt reduced owr interest

burden and increased our cash and undrown facihities

Bank borrowings
As at 31 December 2012 the Company has drawn €104 milion (2011 €20 milhon) under the revohng credit faality

In addition to the term bank loans, the Group has a €126 mithon (2011 €186 million) synthetic letter of crednt facility which 15 ovoilable for the issuonce of
letters of credit and bank guarantees On 2 May 2012, the Group completed a refinancing of its synthetc letter of credit foality due 2013 by incregsing its

existing term loan due 2016 by US$150 million

Approximately €171 milion of letters of creditin various currencies were issued but undrown on 31 Decemnber 2012 (2011 €174 million) under the synthetrc
letter of credit facility and revohing aedit faclity The remaining amount unissued under our synthetic letter of credit facility as at 31 December 2012 15 €7

milllon {2011 €13 milion)

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities which expire beyond one year

€ millions 2012 2011

Floating rate 45 87

Fixed rate ' -

Total 46 87 .

As at 31 December 2012 CEVA Group Plc had €257 milhon {2011 €217 mithion}) in cash on Its Consolidated Bakance Sheet In cddition to this cash, CEVA
Group Plc has access to €422 million (2011 €280 milhon) of credat foailities held centrally, as described above, of which €383 million (2011 €207 milhon) was
drawn Total headroom at 31 Decernber 2012 was therefore €296 mikon (2011 €290 milhion)

Cestain covenants and events of default

Our indebtadness contains and any future indebtedness we may incur would likely contain, a number of restrictive covenants that will impose significant
operating and financial restrictions on us, induding restnctions on our ability to, amongst others, Incur or guarantee additiona! debt, pay dividends and make
other restrcted payments, create of incur certain liens make certamn Investrents engage In sales of assets and subsidiory stock enter into transactions with
affikates and transfer ofl or substantsally afl of o assets or enter into merger or consclidation transactions [n addition our senlor secured credst facilities
require us to maintan a maximum ratio of secured first hen net debt to covencnt EBITDA of 40to 10 calculated for the trafling four quarters (as determined
under our senior secured aedit facility) The definition of covenant EBITDA allows us to add badk certarn non cash of non recurmng charges that are deducted
1n determuiming net income (for example, restructuting costs) and te add the future benefit of speafic cost reduction programs As at 31 December 2012 the

Group had significant headroom on this covenant

Interest rate and fees
The Interest rates applicable to loans under the senlor secured facihties are ot our option equal to either an altemate base rate or an adjusted LIBOR for o one,

two three or six month Interest pertod, or  nine or 12 month period, If avarlable from ol relevent lenders, In each case, plus an apphcable margin

Notes
The Group s secured notes are semor obligations of the issuer and the guaronters, secured by fiens on certain of the Issuer s and the guarantors’ exsting and

future assets The hiens securing the 8 375 % first lien sentor secured notes and the senior secured faclittes rank serior to the fiens sequring the other secured
notes The hens securing the Group's lien and a half pnonty senlor secured notes ranks senior to the liens securing the junior prionty senior secured notes
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but jumor to the hens securing the first ben debt. The Group's serwor notes and senifor unsecured loans are unsequred senior obligations of the Issuer and the
guarantors

Each sertes of notes contains customary covenants and events of default that among other things restnct subject to certmn exceptions our ability and the
ability of our subsidanes to incur ndebtedness, sell assets moke investments engage I acquisitions mergers or consohdatrons and make dvidend and other
restnicted payrnents

Each seres of notes may be redeemed ot our option at certain redemption prices plus accrued interest. Upon the occurrence of certaln change of conirol
events each holder of notes may require us to repurchase all or o portion of Its notes at @ purchase price equal to 101% of the pnncipal amount of Its notes,

plus accrued interest.

On 21 Novemmber 2011 we entered into amendrments to the agreements goverming the Senlor Unsecured Faality the Extended Senior Notes and the
Extended Seruor Subordinated Notes Pursuant to such amendments instead of receiving scheduled interest payments in the fourth quarter of 2011, Apollo
agreed to receive acarued and unpatd interest on 3 February 2012 In exchange for a nominal consent fee the purpose of which was to improve the balonce of

the timing of CEVA's interest payments

US ABL facility due 2015

On 19 Novernber 2010 certan US subsidiones of the Group and a new subsidiary CEVA US Recevobles LLC (Linrestricted Subsidiary} entered Into ogreements
estabhishing an Asset Backed Loan (ABL) Fadlity with an inisal commitment omount of US$200 milkon On 30 Novernber 2010 the commiltted amount of the
ABL Faality was inaeased to US$250 milhion The cbligotions of the Unrestricted Subsidiary under the ABL Foafity are secured on a first prionty basis by all
currently owned and subsequently acquired assets of the Unrestricted Subsidiary, induding but not mited to, alt of the cccounts receivable transferred to the
Unrestncted Subsidiary by the LS subsidiones The ABL Faality matures on 19 Novemnber 2015 As ot 31 December 2012 the outstanding drawn amount of

the ABL Facility was U53164 milhon

Australian Recelvables Facllity due 2015

On 1 October 2012 certain Australian subsidianes of the Group compieted a A$40 million recervables purchase faciiity due 2015 As at 31 December 2012
the outstanding drawn amount was €31 muliion (A$40 mution)

For the chenges in bosrowings after 31 Decernber 2012 please refer to note 29 "Events after balance sheet date

22 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a number of pension plans around the world, most of which are defined contnbution plans CEVA has a small number of defined benefit
plans of which the main ones are based i Italy the Netherlands, the United Kingdom and the United States The plans in the United Kingdom and the Umted
States are closed to new mermbers

Amounts recognized in the Conschdated Balance Sheet

€ millions 2012 2011
Present volue of funded obligations 211 177
Faw value of plan assets 99 84
Deficit 112 93
Retmbursernent right 2 1
Llability In the balance sheet 114 94
talion pension plan

In accordance with the Trottamento di Fine Rapports ( TFR ) legistation in Italy employees are entitied to a termination payment on leaving the comnpony
The TFR regulation changed from 1 January 2007 and employees were given the option to either remaoin under the pnar regulation or to trensfer the future
accruals to external pension funds The funded provision for TFR matuning after 1 January 2007 is treated as a defined contnbution plan under both options
An amount of €18 mithon at 31 Decernber 2012 (2011 €17 mullion) has been recognized In the provision for pension liabilities 1n accardance with this
legiskation, whuch s unfunded As part of the retivement benefit obligation the Group alse reports a hability ("Cassa Vincolata Passiva ) of €26 millon ot 31
December 2012 (2011 €24 rullion) that represents the nght of current employers of former CEVA employees to daim TFR payments Similorly the Group also
has an asset ( Cassa Vincolota Attva”) of €2 miflion (2011 €1 mifion) that 1s nduded 10 non current prepayments This asset reflects the night of the Group to
¢iavm TFR payments for certain employees from therr prior employers
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Movement in defined beneflt obligations

€ millions 2012 2011
At 1 January 177 164
Service costs 9 7
Other costs 1
Interest costs 7 3
Actuancl loss / (gain) 27 7
Exchonge rate differences 1 2
Benefits paid {12) (11}
Teansfers 1 .
At 31 December 211 177
Movement 1n plan assets
€ millions 2012 20Mm
At 1 Jonuary 84 74
Expected return on plan assets 4 4
Actuarial {loss) / gain 3
Exchange rate differences 1 1
Employer contributions 10 10
Benefits pard (3 (5}
Settlements 2
Transfers .
At 31 December 99 B84
Expense recognized in the Consoltdated Income Statement
€ milhons 2012 2011
Recognized in persannel expenses (note 7)
Service costs 3 7
Recognized in finance expense (note 5)
Expected return on plan assets (&) {4
Interest costs 7 8
Employer penslon expense for the year 12 11
Amounts recogmized In the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
€ millions 2012 2010
Actuanial {gains) / losses recognized in the statement of other comprehensive
income in the pertod (before tax) 24 7
Cumulative actuarial losses recogrzed in the statement of other comprehensive
income {before tax) 42 18
The actual return on plan assets was an €8 mithion gam (2011 €5 million galn)
Principal actuasnial assumptions
2012 2011
Discount rate 31% LL%
Expected return on assets S54% 53%
Rate of compensation inaease 2% 23%
Inflation 20% 21%

Amounts Indicated are welghted averages
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Assumptions regarding future martality expenence are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with public statistics and experience In each temtory

Mortality assumptions for our most important funds are bosed on the following post retirement mortality tables

+ United Kingdom for males the assumption s 98% of the SAPS Senes 1 {*S1PA ) table with year of buth medium cohart projections and floors subject to
a minimum annual rote of Improvement of 1 5% and for fernales it is 100% of the 51PA table with year of birth medium cohort projections subject toa
mimmym annual rate of improvernent of 10%

« The Netherlands age adjustment based on the ES P2A table published by the Dutch Actuonial Society the GBM/GBY 2012 2062 mortality table

+ Uruted States RP2000 Combined Healthy table Fully Generationa!

These tables translate into an average hife expectancy in years of a pensioner retinng at age 65

2012 2011
UK NL us UK NL uUs
Reuring at the end of the reporting period

Mcle 224 215 196 222 200 195
Female 241 233 214 40 229 213

Retiring 20 years after the end of the reporting penod
Male 253 233 210 252 218 209
Fernale 259 244 224 259 238 222

Other key assumptions inherent to the valuation of the Group s pensions and the determinatron of our pension cost include employee tumover discount rates
expected long term returns on plan ossets and future wage increases The expected return on plan assets 1s determined by considenng the expected returns
avaitable on assets underlying the cument snvestments policy These assumptions are given a weighted average and are bosed on independent actuanal advice
and are updated on an annual basis Actual arcumstances may vary from these assumptions giving rise to a different pension liabllity

Expected employer contributions to post employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 December 201 3 are €12 million

Pan ossets do not nclude any Investments i the Group and are compised as follows

2012 2011

Equity 30% 30%
Fixed interest 34% 39%
Real estate 2% 0%
Cash 1% 2%
Other 33% 29%
Total 100% 100%
The expenence adjustment to the pension plans are as follows

€ millons 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
At 31 December present value of defined benefit obligation 21 177 164 130 142
Fair value of plan assets 99 84 74 56 42
Deflcit In the plan’s funded status 112 93 0 74 100
Experience adustment on plan liobilities 2 1 {2) 14 (%)
Experlence adjustment on plan assets 3 5 1 & (11)

23 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

All stock based compensation Is issued from the CEVA [nvestments Limited 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan The plan sesides with CEVA Investments Limited,
the entity which has granted the owards The expenses with respect to each separate installment will be recognized in the appropriate vesting penod as o
charge frorn CEVA Investments Limited to CEVA Group Plc.

Options granted to employees vest in three tranches The first tranche Is strictly service based, vesting on each of the first five anniversaries of the grant date
The remaining two tsanches are performance related and are measured upon vanous intemal metrics

All performance based options vest six months following e qualfied change in control Change in control con be an acquisiion of beneficial ownership of the
Group, merger, consohidation of recaplitahzotion
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The number ond weighted average exeraise price of share options ore as follows

2012 2011

Weighted average Weighted average

Number exercise price Number exercise pnce

Cutstanding at 1 January 269,949 7582 275,521 76 87

Granted during the year 25437 55 34 11564 5265
Forfeited (78699) 8293 (16 947)

Exercised (537) 2015 {189} 2015

Qutstanding at 31 December 216,150 7082 269,949 7582

Exercisable at the end of the year 81014 7977 84002 7688

The aptians cutstending at 31 Cecember 2012 have a weighted average exerase prce of £70 82 {2011 €75 82) and a remaining weighted average
contractual life of 5 45 years (2011 6 05 years)

The fair value for services recetved (n retum for share cptions granted 15 based on the falr vatue of share options granted The weighted average farr value of the
share gplions granted dunng the penod determined using the Black Scholes Merton valuotion modet was €27 35 per oplion (2011 €31 14} The significant
inputs into the model were o weighted average share prce of €55 34 (2011 €62 65), exercise price as shown above average volatility duning the year of

46 36% (2011 45 49%) a welghted average expected option ife of 7 17 years (2011 7 17 years) and a nsk free interest rate of 202% (2011 2 67 %) based
on the ECB rates on each grant date in 2012 Expected volaulity 1s estimated by consldering the historic average share price volatility of our industry peers

In the ahsence of a public market for common shares the share price was determined by the Group based on a number of wolugtion methods incorparating
factors and assumnptions that the Group believes knowledgeable willing market particspants would consider in setting the share pnice induding consideration
of industry peers and other quantitative and gqualitative factors

There are no expected dvidends

Referto note 7 Personnel expenses” for the share option expense and the details of the options granted to directors and executive management.

24 PROVISIONS

The economic outflow of non current provision 1s expected to occur within one to five years The impact of discounting was not considered to be matenal

€ milllons Legal daims Insurance Restructuring Other Total
Balance at 1 January 2012 49 34 13 30 126
Raised during the year 16 13 8 18 55
Utihzed during the year (13) (8) (6} {10} (37}
Reversed during the year (5) 3) (L {8) {17
Exchange rote differences (1 ) (2}
Balance at 31 December 2012 46 36 14 29 125
Of which non cunent 18 16 S 21 60
Of which tutrent 28 0 9 8 6%

Legal clatms
A number of legal daims are pending against the Group They consist of provisions for claims reloted to labor and employment matters commercial

grrangements persona! Injury and property damoge daims (incuding daims seeking to hald us bable for acaidents invalving our independent owner
operators), international trade intellectual property environmental health and safety torlff enforcement property damage, subrogation daims and vanous
other matters ansing from CEVA s ordinary business actrties

While the outcome of these disputes cannot be predicted with certainty, management belteves that, based upon legal advice and Inforrmation receved the
final deasion will not materially affect the consohdoted position of the Group To the extent management has been able to reliably estmate the expected
cutcome of these clalms, o proviston has been recorded as at 31 December 2012 Where the expected outcome cannct be rellably estmated disclosure of the

matter is given In note 27 “Contingencies”

Insurance
The imsuronce prowsion indudes omounts provided in respect of self msuwonce schemes which represent estmates bosed on historicol expenence of the

ultimate cost of setiling outstanding daims and daims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date on risks retained by the Group
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Restructuring

These provisions refate to vanous restructuning projects initiated as part of the Group s cost contninment programs They indude staff redundancy costs, and

shte closure costs

Other

Other provisions Yargely comprse peovisions for dilapidations and dismanthing costs employee benefit ebligations cnerous contracts, tax and other related costs

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

€ miflions 2012 2011
Trode payables 678 617
Personnel reloted occruals 104 121
Socal securlty and other taxes 80 76
Accrued labilities 504 492
Total trade and other payables 1,366 1,306

26 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure for the acquisition of tanglble and intangible fixed ossets contracted for at the Balonce Sheet date but not yet incurred totals €13 million

(2011 €3 million)

Operuting lease commitments

The Group leases vanous ofiices ond warehouses under non cancelloble operating lecse agreements The lease terms are generally between one and six years

and the majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease penod ot market rates

The Group also leases vortous motor vehides, office and computer equipment under operating leose ogreements

During the year ended 31 December 2012, €304 million was recognized as an expense in the Consolidated Income Statement in respect of operating leases

{2011 €294 mihon)

The future oggregate minimum lease poyments undes non cancellable operating leases are os follows

€ millons 2012 2011
Less than 1 year 254 262
Y 5 years 510 515
Thereafter 299 346
Total 1,063 1,123
Of which guaranteed by third party / custormers 93 99

Of the future lease payments €775 milion (2011 €884 mullion) relates to comimitments in relatfon to multl user/shared fachities while the remaining €288

milton (2011 €239 million) is dedicated 1o specfic customers

Guarantees

The Group haos tssued guarantees on behalf of its subsichanes in the ordinary course of business In connection wath leose ogreements customs duty deferment
and local credit lines amounting to €263 million (2017 €265 mithon) of which €119 milion {2011 €174 mililon) was ssued but undrawn under our synthetic
letter of credit facifity and €52 milion (2011 €0 mullion} tssued but undrown under our revolving credit facility The rematning amount unissued under the

synthetic letter of credit foolity was €7 million (2011 €14 million) The obligotions under the guarantees Issued by banks and other finantial Institutions have

been secured by CEVA and certaln of its subsidianes
27 CONTINGENCIES

Litigation and Legal Proceedings

The Company s imvoived in several legal proceedings refating to the normal conduct of our business While the outcome of these legal proceedings is

uncertain, the Company believes that It has prowided for all probable and estimeble kabilities ansing from the nocmal course of business and we therefore
do not expect any habiity ansing from any of these legal proceedings to have a matertal Impoct on our results of opesations, iquidity capltol resources or

finanadal pesition

Surcharge Antitrust Investigation and Litigation

Several CEVA subsidharies and certain curent and formes employees have been of are subject to and cooperating with, mvestigations by the Eurapean
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Commussion { EC7) and! the governments of Brazil and Singapore for possible price fixing and other Improper coltusive activity with respect to certam
accessonial and other charges along with several other entitles in the freight forwarding Industry  Sevesal investigetions (induding by the U'S Department of
Justice ( DOY ) ond by authonties in Canada Japan, Mew Zecland and Switzerdand) have been resolved

CEVA has also reoched a settlernent agreernent with the plaintiffs in a putative class action lowsuit against EGL Inc ond EGL. Eagle Global Logistics LP
styled Precision Assecrates Inc et al v Panalpinag World Transpost (Holding) Ltd et al filedinthe U5 District Court for the Eastern Distrct of New York The
agreement remains subject to final court approval (the <ourt granted preliminary approval on 23 Septernber 2011) and other contingenaies such as our
resassion nghts and there can be no assurance that it will result in final resolution of the matter

In February 2010, we recerved a statement of objections from the EC concemung our alleged partriipation In certaan price fixing cartels in the arr fresght
forwarding business in viclation of the European Unlon antitrust rules We submitted a response, and on 28 March 2012 the EC issued its ruling The EC
ruled that EGL, Inc and two of its subsidicnes (now known os CEVA Freight (UK) Limited and CEVA Freight Shanghai Limited) had violoted European Union
campetition law by partcipating in two infringements of competition law i relation to the pricing of twe discrete fees The EC impased a total fine of
approximately €3 milhon on EGL Inc, and its substdiaries, which we have now poid pending our appeal which has now been filed The Company cooperated
with the EC throughout its investigation and received substantiol reductions in its fines as a result,

With regard to the Braziian investigation on & August 2010, the Brazilian antitrust enforcement authorities announced on administrative proceeding agalnst
numerous frelght forwarding companies including CEVA Logistics Holdings BY and CEVA Logsstics Ltda  and against aumerows Indriduals induding one
current and one former employee of CEVA Pursuant to the appheable administrative process, we intend 1o submit a response At this time the extent of the
potentiol daims identfied by the Brazilian authorities that ore being alleged as to the Company’s subsidianies Is not dear nor Is the timing of the next steps in
the admmistrative process or any potential resolution of the matter Accaedingly It Is not possible to predict the tirming or outcome of the investigation o the
potenuiol financial impact on the Company, which could itvolve the unpasition of adimuustrative or avil fines penclues damaoges or other sanctions that could

have @ matenal adverse impact an the Cormpany

In December 2011 we received a letter of inquiry from the Competiton Commission of Stngapore { CC5*) which appears to be focused on the subject motters
of the DOJ plea agreement the New Zealand Commerce Comrmission settlement and the EC statement of objections We are cooperating with the CCS to

provide requested information

We cannot determine the timing or outcomne of the govemmenital investigatrons that temain pending These investigations coufd result in the imposition of
administrative or cvif sanctions Including fines, penclues, damages and debarment from federal contracting in the U'S or ather sanctions which could have o

matenct odverse effect on our financial position, results of operobors cperoting cosh flows and business activues

We are also the subject of an investigation by the Italian competition authority reloted to possible price fixing and other improper collusive actmty with
respect to intemnational road frelght forwarding to and from Italy On 16 June 2011, we were nolfled that the italran competition authorty hos found on
mfungerment of Itahan law and imposed fines and penalties agmnst a number of frelght forwarders including a subsidiasy of CEVA. As aresult of the fines
beng rmposed we have previously recorded a provision in connection with this Investigatson paid the fine ond appedled our initfal appeal was rejected but
we have filed a further oppeal Management believes the amounts in question are not motenial to the financtal performance of the Company

Independent Contractor-Related Proceedings
The dassification of drivers as independent contractors—which we believe to be a common practice 10 our industry in the U § —1s challenged from time to

time by federal and state governmental and regulatory authonties induding tax authonties as well as by indwidual dnvers who seek to have drivers reclossified
as employees We are currently pasty Lo a lawsuit styled Mohit Narayan, et ol v EGL Inc and CEVA Freight LLC In which the plaintiffs filed o putative class
action seeking o deduratory judgment restitution damages ond other relief The case Is currently on rerand from the Ninth Clrcult Count of Appeals to the
fedesal district count in the Northern Distnict of Californla In September 2012 the distnet court denied the plantiffs’ request to certify the lawsuit as a dass
action The plaintiffs asked the Ninth Crcuit Court of Appedals Lo review thot ruling but the court denied that request which means indwidual plaintiffs must

assert their own daims

In addition In October 2009, the Cahfornia Employment Development Department ( EDD ) based on a worker dassification audit determined that such
indnnduals should be redassified as employees for purposes of state unemnployment tax employment training tax disabiity insurance contnbutions and
personal mcome tax, ond the EDD 1ssued a tax assessment We have petitioned the EDD to review Its assessment with o potential for abatiig a majonty of the

assessed taxes

While we cannot provide assurances with respect to the outcome of these cases-and it1s possible thot we could incur a matenal loss in connection with any of
these matters we Intend to vigorously defend ourselves in these proceedings and do not at this time believe that a loss in these cases fs probable or reasonably

estimable

We were subject to o nationwida dass action in James Foster and Stone Logistics Inc v CEVA Freight, LLC, In which the plainffs afleged that CEVA s
independent contractor agreernents with its owner operators folled to comply with federal ieasing regulations and that CEVA was In breach of the agreements
The plaintiffs sought domoges, an Injunction egainst continued violattons, o declaration that CEVA was In violation of fedesal leasing requirements and other
telief The court certified the class in December 2010 but in August 2012 decentified the portton of the class action conceming the breach of contract doims
CEVA and the plalntlffs reached asettlement of the remaining daims, and the court approved the settlement and disrissed the case  CEVA has paid the

settlement amount, which was immaterial ond the case is now dosed




-1

CEVA Group Plc Annua! Report 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Tax Proceedings

We are mwolved in tax oudits in various junsdictions relating to the normal conduat of our business White the outcome of these audits 1s uncertain we beleve
that we have provided for all probable and estimable tax hobihties artsing from its normal course of business and we therefore do not expect any habibty
ansing from these oudits to have @ matenial impact on our results of operations hquidity capital resources or financial posiion

Other Proceedings

From time to ime, we are involved In a variety of legal proceedings and disputes ansing in the ordinery course of business For example we have been and
currently are subject to numerous labor and employment proceedings and disputes in both [taly and Brazi alleging vanous causes of action and rarsing other
legal challenges to our labor and employment practices Such proceedings Indude individual daums and tawsuits disputes with unlons, class action clalms
ond govemmental or quasi governmental investigations While the outcomne of these legal proceedings 1s uncertam and may not be capable of estimation
we believe that resolution of these metters and the incumrence of thelr reloted costs and expenses should not have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations hiquichty, capltal resources or financial position

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parent company

The immediate parent of CEVA Group Plc at 31 Decemnber 2012 wos CEVA [nvestments Limited a company incorporated in the Coyman Islonds The following
table sets forth the shareholders of CEVA Investments Lirmited as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011

2012 2011

Number of shares Cwnerstup Number of shares Qwnership

heneficially owned percentage benefidally owned percentage

AP Vi Eurc Holdings LP 2 B44,555 709% 2844555 707%
Alplnvest Partners Beheer 2006 L P 422 880 105% 422 880 105%
AAA Guarantor Co fnvest VI {B),L P 406 365 101% 406 365 101%
CEVA managerment smvestars 341756 85% 352299 87%
Total _ 4,015,556 100 0% 4,026,099 100 0%

Number of shares excludes & 416 $65 class B shares ssued on 1 February 2012 to affiliates of Apollo

Apollo is a related party by virtue of the fact that it manages AP V1 CEVA Holdings, L P, AlpInvest Partners Beheer 2006 LP AAA Guarantor Co Invest Vi (B),
LP, Apollo Fund VI BC LP and Autumnleaf LP These entities together own 91 5% (31 December 2011 913%) of the equity i CEVA [nvestments Limited,
which In turn, as of 31 December 2012 owned 100% of the equity of CEVA Group Ple

CEVA Group Plc has a service agreement with Apollo for the provision of management and support services The annual fee 1s equal to the greates of €3 million
per annwn and 15% of the Group 5 EBITDA. Fees and expenses of €4 million (2011 €5 mdlion) are included in the Consohdated Income Statement for the
year ended 31 Decernber 2012

Dunng 2012 CEVA subsdranes enlered into a purchase and sole agreement pursuant to whech €14 miion of their trade accounts recenvables were sold to an
affiliate of Apallo on terms which monogernent believes compared favorably to market prang  Under the terms of the agreement the recevables are sold

ot a smoll discount relative to thewr carrying value in exchange for all interests in such recervables the CEVA subsidiaries retain the obligation to senace the
collection of the recervables on the purchasers’ behalf for which they are paid a fee and the purchasers defer poyment of a portion of the recervable purchose
price  This arrangement has been accounted for as a with recourse factoring arrangement with no derecognition of the trade receivables Zero borowings
were outstanding pursuant to this agreement as of 31 December 2012

Josh Harns Stan Parker Tam White Marvin O Schianger and Michae! Jupiter are directars of CEVA Group Plc and also hold semior positions at Apalio or Apollo
portfollo comparies, as does Gareth Turner (former director)

CEVA Group Plic has booked o poyable which 1s in dispute to CEVA investments Limrted amounting to €14 million at 31 December 2012 (2011 €13 mithon)
This relates to intercormpany cash pooling arangements and 1s induded within trade ond other payables in the Consolldated Balance Sheet

Trading transactions
During the year Group entitles entered into the following trading transactions with related parties that are not members of the Group

€ millions 2012 2011
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

Salesof  Purchoses owed by owed to Salesof  Puschases owed by owedto

qoods of qoods  reloted paries  related parties goods of goods related parties  related parties

Joint ventures 4 3 1 4 2 1
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Financing
From time to ume depending upon market, prcing and other condibions, as well as our cash balances and liquidity we or our affiliates, Induding Apollo,

may seek to acquire or sell notes or other indebtedness of CEVA through open market purchases or sales prvotely negotigted tronsactions tender offers
redemption or otherwise, upon such terms and at such prices os we o our affiictes may determine {ar as maybe provided for in the indentures or other
documents govesning the notes or other indebtedness), for cash or ather consideratson In additon we have consldered and will cantinue to evaluate potential
transactions 1o reduce our outstanding debt (such as debt for debt exchanges and other similar ransactions) to extend our debt matunties or enter into
alterncuive finanang arrangements, as well os potenticl transactions purstant to which third parties, Agollo or its affiliates may provide financing to CEVA or
otherwise engage in ransactions to provide bguidity to CEVA. There can be no assurance as to which, If any of these altematives of combinations thereof we
or our afftlates may choose to pursue in the future as the pursult of any oltemative will depend upon numerous foctors such as market conditions our finanoal
performance and the bimitalions apphcable to such transactions undes our financmg dotuments.

At 31 December 2012 funds managed by Apollo held approxtmately LIS$26 milion of 11 5% junior prionity senior secuted notes due 2018 (31 December
2011 USS77 mithon) none of 8 5% semor notes {31 Decenber 2011 €157 million) US$113 million of the senior unsecured loan facdity due 2018 (31
December 2011 US$629 million), none of the 10% senior subordinated notes (31 December 2011 €82 miflion) and U$132 milllion of the 12 75% senior
notes due 2020 (31 December 2011 mil} Pursuant to the Recoprtalization these holdings have been reduced to nil as at the date of the approval of these
financiol statements ptease refer to note 29 Events ofter balance sheet date” for further details

Uttimate controlling party
The ultimate controliing party of CEVA Group Pic s Apolio

Cther related party transactions
As of 31 December 2012, there were 243 management and other personnel in CEVA Group companies who participate in the maonggement equity plan as

disdosed in note 23 “Share based payments” They also receive salaries and benefits as part of their employment compensation

29 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 2 January 2013 CEVA Logistics completed the sale of its European Container Logistics business and Asta Pocific Pallecon business {together forming the
Intermediate Bulk Contalner Business) Gross cash proceeds of €135 mullron were realized resufting i a gain on disposal of €20 mullion The gain 1s calculated
after deducting goodwill and Intang bles of £35 millien transaction costs of €2 million and currency transtaton differences of €2 miflion that were previously

recogrized (n other comprehensive Income

On 3 April 2013 CEVA Group Plc announced a finanaial recapitalzation plan that would reduce substantially CEVA s averall debt and interest costs as well gs
incregse hquldity and strengthen its capitel structure (the Recapitalization or Recap ) On 2 May 2013 the Recapitahization successfully dosed The Recap will
enable CEVA to better serve Its customers, accelerate its growth throughout the world and fund the development of new supply chain products and services
The Recapitalization will reduce consolidated net debt by more than €1 2 billran (excluding intercompony debt with CEVA Holdings LLC) reduce annual cash
mterest expense by over €130 milhon or approximately 50% further strengthen our liquidity with €165 million of proceeds from equity capital from our new
shareholders, and provide access to additional hquidity up to €65m through the finanang commitment from one of our largest mstitutional investors CEVA

will utilize the new maney for investrment (n its business plan

Followang the Recopitalizetion, CEVA Holdings LLC { ‘Holdings' ) became the ultimate parent company of CEVA In the Recap, Apollo’s equity interests in CEVA
Investments Limited were eliminated and Apallo acquired o minonty stake (n the equity of Holdings through exchanging CEVA debt it held and through the
cash purchase of equity However Apolto acquired control of Holdings through contractual arrangements

The Recapltalization Involved the following transactions
+ €518 rilion principal amount of Junior Prionity Senlor Secured Notes exchanged for equity in Holdings which then released the notes and receved a ke
amount of new junior priority seruor secured PIK notes Each $1,000 of Junlor Prionty Senor Secured Notes validly tendered by eligible holders recerved
0 4855082 Holdings Series A 2 Convertlble Preferred Shares and 0 2242813 Holdings Comimon Shares
= €434 mifion principal amount of 12 75% Semior Notes exchanged for equity in Holdings, which then released the notes Each $1,000of 12 75% Senior
Notes validly tendeted by eligitle holders recerved 0 4144362 Holdings Common Shares
+ €6 millon principal emount of 12% Semor Notes exchanged for equity In Holdings, whrch then released the notes Each €1 000 of 12% Semior Notes validly
tendeted by eligible holders recewved 0 5035416 Holdings Common Shares
= €85 milion principal amount of Senior Unsecured Loans exchanged for equity in Holdings which then released theloans Each $1 000 of Senior Unsecwred
Loans validly tendered by eligible holders receved 0 3929161 Holduings Common Shares
= €69 millon principal amount of Term Loans and €160 mdfion pancipal amount of 8 375 % Senfor Seaured Notes were releosed by one of CEVA's largest
institutional Investors in return for €229 mii:on prinopal amount of new 4% Senor Secured Notes
0 CEVA obtalned a commitment to raise o further €65 milhon principal ormount of new 4% Senior Secured Notes from this Investor at CEVA's option
« £165 millron capital injection was recerved from CEVA's new ulimate shareholders
« Interest payments were made on the Juror Prionty Sentor Secured Motes and 12 75% Senlor Notes remalning outstanding after the Recap in respect of
amounts due 1 April 2013
« Payments of accrued intetest were made on the Tesm Loans and B 375 % Senlor Secured Notes being relecsed
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The accounting treatment of the transactions above has not been estimated as yet by the Company

Asof 31 March 2013 the Company had approximately €300 mition of total headroan which did not indlisde any proceeds from the copital myection
pursuant to the Recap In connection with the Recapitalzation CEVA did not make the interest payments due as of 1 Aprt 2013 on the Junior Prionty Senior

Secured Notes and the 12 75% Senior Notes on the scheduled Interest payment dote On 2 May 2013 such interest poyments were made on the Junior
Pnonty Senior Secured Notes and the 12 75% Sentor Notes that were not tendered in the Recap As of the date of the opproval of these financial statements

any defaults under our moterial debt docurmnentatson related to the Recap have been successfully cured
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30 GROUP ENTITIES

The Group's subsidianies jolnt ventures associotes and Investments as at 31 December 2012 are induded in the table below All entities other than holding
companles are pnimarily involved in the provision of Freight Management and Contract Logistics services

All subsidiary undertakings are Included mn the consolidation [F the proportion of the voting nghts in the subsidiary undertakings held directly by the Group
differs from the proportion of ordinary shares held, the former ss disdosed i brackets In the table befow

Country of Incorporation

Holding if
Entity less than 100%

Algeria

CEVA Logistics Algerle EURL

Angola

CEVA Logistics (Angola)  Transitarios e Agentes de Navegaciio Lda

Argentina

CEVA Logistics Argentina S A
Circle International Argenting S.A.
Eagle Global Lagistics de Argentina SRL

Australia

£y

CEVA Freight {(Australta) Pty Limited
CEVA Freight Recervables Trust

CEVA Logistics (Australla) Pty Limited
CEVA Logishics Recervables Trust

CEVA Matenals Handling Pty Lmited
CEVA Receivables (Australia) Pty Limited
Pallecon Container Logistics Pty Limited
CEVA Pty Limited

Austria

ASS Logistk Schrader Schachinger GmbH S0%
ASS Logrsuk Schrader Schachinger GmbH & Co KG 50%
CEVA Freight Austrig GmbH

CEVA Logistics Austria GmbH

CEVA Logistrcs Central and Eostern Europe GmbH

Bahrain

EGL Engle Globdl Logistics (Bahrain} WLL 000% {51%)

Belgium

CEVA DENI Logistics NV

CEVA Freight Belgum NV

CEVA Ground Ewope BVBA

CEVA Logistics Belgum NV

Edoserve (Economic Interest Group) 01%
EGL (Belgium) Holding Company BVBA

Invictus Boom NV 00%
SODIAC {Economic Interest Group) 01%

Bermuda

FACET Insurance Limited
Reggo Holdings Ltd

Brazil

AV Manufactuning Industrio e Comercio de Pegas e Acessortos Automativos Lida
CEVA Frelght Management do Brasil Ltda
CEVA Holdings Lida
CEVA Loglstics Lida
Curde Fretes Internationats do Brasil Ltda

British Virgin Isl (BVI)

CEVA Central America Holding Lirmted
CEVA China Holding Limited

Canada

CEVA Freight Canada Corp
CEVA Logistics Canada ULC

Cayman Islonds

CEVA Logistics Cayman
CEVA Logistics Second Cayman

Chile

CEVA Frelght Management Logistica de Chile Ltda 9999%(100%)
Cirde Intemational Chile SA

Cirdle Qutsourcing Services SA

China

An): - CEVA Automotive Logistics Company Limited 5000%
CEVA Freight {Shenzhen) Limited

CEVA Freight International {Shangha) Company Limited

CEVA Freaght Shanghar Lemited

CEVA Logsstics Company Limited Shanghas 70%
CEVA Logistics International Trading {Shanghal} Company Limited

Chongglng Any CEVA Hongyan Automotive Logistics Company Umited 30%
Niangsu Anji - CEVA Logisties Cormpany Limited 5%
Liao Ning A Lean Automotive Logrstics Company Limited 2501%

“ Denotes a guarantor entity

** Entity sold with the disposal of the Intermed:ate Bulk Contamner Business
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Country of incorporation Entity

Holding if
less than 100X

China continued Shangha! Anjl  Suchl Warehousing and Tiansportation Company Limited
Shanghal Anj  Tonghwu Automative Logistics Company Limited
Yizhen SAIC Logistics Company Limited

33%
255%
35%

Colombia Agendia de Aduanas CEVA Logistics Lido Nivel 2
CEVA Frelght Management de Colombla Lida

Congo CEVA Logistics Congo 5 A

70% (100%)

Costa Rica {EVA Fretght Management Costa Rica, S deRL

Czech Republic CEVA Frelght Czech Republicsro
CEVA Logisics spol sTo

€l Salvador CEVA Freight Management El Salvador, Lidg de CV

Finland CEVA Logistics Finland Oy

France CEVA Freight Holdings France SAS
CEVA Freight Management france SAS
CEVA Logsstics France SAS

Germeny ** CEVA Contamnes Logistk GmbH

*  CEVA Freight {Management) GmbH

*  CEVA Freight Gesmany GmbH

*  CEVA Logisties CEE Holding GmibH
CEVA Logistics GmbH
DIHS DAKOSY Interessengemeinschaft Hamburger Sped:teure GrmbH

*  Exporto Geselischaft fur Exportberatung mbH
Interessengemenschafl Dotenbank Spediion GbR
Kombiverkehs Deutsche Gesellschaft fur komberuerten Guierverkehr mbH & Co KG
TRANSCONTAINER UNIVERSAL GmbH & Co KG

385%

766%
021%
083%

Greece CEVA Logistics Hellgs SA.

Guatemala CEVA Freight Management Guatemala, Lida

Hong Kong *  CEVAFM (Hong Kong) Limited
*  CEVA Frelght Hong Kong Limited
*  CEVA Logistics (Hong Kang) Umited
*  Pyrormmud Lines Limited
*  Freight Systems Limited
*  Ozomic Limited

Hungary CEVA Contract Loglstics Kft
CEVA Logistics Hungary Kft

India CEVA Frelght (India) Private Limited
CEVA Logistics India Private Lirruted

Indonesia PT CEVA Freight Indonesia
PT CEVA Logistik Indonesia
PT Hariapersada Interfreight

95%

95%

Ireland AVEC International Services Limited
AVEC Logistics {Ireland) Limited

Italy CEVA Frewght Itoly Sl
CEVA Logrsucs Holding Italy S p A
CEVA Logistics International {talia Sri
CEVA Logistics Itahia Srl
DIMAF Pharma Supply Chain S
S1TTAM Spedinoni Internazional Trasports Terrestn Aeret Marittimu S e

Japan CEVA Logisixcs Japan Inc.

Jordan CEVA Logisiics Jordan Limited

50% {(100%)

Kazakhstan CEVA Logistics Kazakhstan LLP

Korea CEVA Logistcs Korea Inc

Luxembourg *  CEVA Freight Holdings Luxembourg Sar|
CEVA Frerght Luxembourg Sar|

Malaysia CEVA Freight {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
CEVA Frelght Holdings (Malaysla) Sdn Bhd
CEVA Logistics (Maloysia} Sdn Bhd
Milage Sdn Bhd
Regga (Maloysio) 5dn Bhd
Unipearl Corporation 5dn Bhd

000% (100%)

Mexico CEVA Frelght Management Mexico SA de CV
CEVA Logistica de Mexico,SA de CV

* Denotes a guaranior enbity
** Entity sold with the disposal of the Intermediate Bulk Contamer Business
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Country of Incorporation

Entity

Holding
less than 100%

Mexico continued

CEVA Servioios de Mexlco SA de CV

Netherlands

-

CEVA Contalner Logistics BV
CEVA Coop Holdeo BV

CEVA Frelght Holdings B v
CEVA Freight Holland B
CEVA India Holding B V

CEVA Intercompany B V

CEVA Logistics Dutch Holdeo BV
CEVA Logistics Finance BV
CEVA Logistics Headoflice B V
CEVA Logistics Hotdings BV
CEVA Logistics Nethedands BV
Cooperatieve CEVAJEGLIBA
Cooperatieve CEVA/JEGL I BA

New Zealand

CEVA togistics (New Zealand) Lirmited

Nigeria

CEVA Freight Management Nigeno Limited

Northern Ireland

CEVA Logsstics NI Limited

Norway

CEVA Lagistics Naoway AS

Oman

CEVA Logistics LLC

65%

Panama

CEVA Centiom S de RL
CEVA Freight Management Ponama S deRL
EGL Colombia Holding S deRL

55%

Peru

CEVA Logisics Peru SRL
CEVA Peru Aduanas SA C
EGL Agencia de Adunngs SA C

99% (100%)
9992% (100%)}

Philippines

CEVA Holdings (Philippines) Inc

CEVA Logistics {SUBIC) Inc

CEVA Loglstics Phllippines Inc

CEVA Warehousing and Distribution, Inc.
Regga Transport Contractors Inc.

Regga Warehousing & Distribution Inc

60% (100%)

Poland

CEVA Logistics Poland Sp zoo
CEVA Frelght (Poland) Sp zoo

Portugal

CEVA Logksties (Portugal) Logistica Empresarial Lda

Puerto Rico

CEVA Loglstics Puerto Rico Inc

Qater

CEVA Logstecs (Qalar WL L

4%

Romanla

CEVA Logistics SRL

Saudi Arabla

CEVA International Al Suwaiket Company Lirmited

49% (100%)

Singapore

CEVA Asia Pacific Holdings Company Pte Ltd
CEVA FM (Southeast Asia) Pte Ltd

CEVA Logistics Singapore Pte Ltd

CEVA Logistics Asia Pte Lid

CEVA Supply Chain Singapore Pte Ltd

Slovakia

CEVA Logistics Slovakia sro

South Africa

CEVA Logistics Sauth Africa (Proprietary} Limited
TNT Contaner Logistics (Propaetary} Liruted

Spain

CEVA Frelght (Espaiia) SLU
CEVA Logistics Esporio SLU
CEVA Production Logistics Espaiia, SLU

Sweden

CEVA Logsstics (Sweden) AB

Switzerland

CEVA Logistics Switzerland GmbH
CEVA Manogement GmbH

Taiwan

CEVA Logeshics (Tarwan) Company Limited
Loncord Express (Taiwan) Company Limited

Thailand

CEVA Freight {Thalland) Limited

CEVA Logistics {Thalland) Limited

CEVA Vehide Logistics (Thottand) Lemited
CWBIE Limited

9999% (100%)
49%

Tunisla

CEVA Loglstlcs Tunisla Sar|

Turkey

CEVA Lopstik Linuted §irkatt
CEVA Ulustararase Tasimagitk Lirited Surketr

* Denotes a guarantor entity

* Entity sold with the disposal of the Intermediate Bulk Contamer Business
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Country of incorporation

Entity

Holding if
less than 100X

United Arab Emirates

CEVA Arablo Heavy Transport {LLC}
CEVA intemotional Fraight LLC
CEVA Logistics (UAE ) LLC

CEVA Logistics FZCQ

Circle International LL C

49% (100%)
49% (100%)
49% (100%)

49% (100%)

United Kingdom

e

** CEVA Automolve Logistics UK Limited

CEVA Coltections LLP

CEVA Container Logfstics Limited
CEVA Distribution Limited

CEVA Freight (UK} Holding Company Limited
CEVA Freight (UK) Holdmgs Linited
CEVA Freight (UK) Limited

CEVA Limited

CEVA Logistics Limited

CEVA Network Logistics Limited
CEVA Showfreight Lirmited

CEVA Supply Chain Solutions Limited
Eagle Global Logistics (UK} Limited
F1 Tytherleigh & Co Limuted

Lours No 2 Louted

Newsaogents Wholesale Corp Limited
Newsfast Limited

Paintblend Limited

Paintblend 2 Limited

Pallecon Contamer Logistics Limited

Unrted States

Ashton Leosing Limuted

CEVA Freight Management international Group Inc

CEVA Freight LLC

CEVA Government Services LLC
CEVA Ground US,LP

CEVA Internatlonal Inc,

CEVA Logistics LLC

CEVA Logistics Japan LLC

CEVA Logistics Services US, Inc
CEVA Logistics U'S Group Inc.
CEVA Logistics U S Holdings Inc
CEVA Legistics US , Inc

CEVA Ocean Line Inc

CEVA Trade Services, Inc.

CEVA LIS Recevables, LLC

Cirde International Holdings LLC
ComplianceSource LLC
Customized Transportation International Inc
Eagle Partners LP

Eagle USA Import Brokers Inc
EGL Inc,

EGL Eagle Global Logistics LP
Select Camer Group LLC

49%

Uruguay

Cirde Internaucnal Latin Amenca Holdings S A
Gadupal S A

Vietnam

CEVA Logistics {Vietnam) Co Limited

51%

* Denotes @ guarantor entily

** Entity sofd with the disposal of the Intermediate Butk Container Business
= Entity opted for statutory audit exemption under s&79a of the UK Companies Act 2006
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31 GUARANTOR / NON-GUARANTOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

in December 2006, July and October 2009 March and Decernber 2010 CEVA Group Pic raised funds through offenngs of secunties which were admitted 10
trading an the Global Exchange Market of the Insh Stock Exchange { ISE ) The guarentors of these notes also guarantee our senior secured faciibies on a
senior secured basis (secured on pari passu basis with the quarantees af the first lien sentor secured notes), the lien and o half prienty senior secured notes
{secured on o basis junior to the guarantee of the first ien senlor secured notes and the semior secured facibies) the junior prionty sentor secured notes
{secured on a bosis Juror to the guarantees of the first lien sentor secured notes, the senior secured facilities and the llen and a holf priorty senlor secured
notes) the remaiming amount of the 12 % notes due 2014, the senlor unsecured loan facility ond the senlor notes (induding the semor notes held by affikates
of Apollo with an extended matuwrity) on a senior basis and the senior subardinated notes (including the senior subordinoted notes held by affiliates of

Apollo with an extended maturity) on o senior subordinated basis The subsidianes who are guorantors® are indicated on note 30 Group entities™ Al other
subsidianies are the non guarantors

When guarantees are provided for debt thot is hsted on the [SE the ISE requires financial information relating to each group to be sepasately presented in ¢
note to the cansakdated financlol statements presenting, in separate columns, the Guarantors (on a combined basls) and the non guarantors {on a combined
basis) with an additional column reflecting eliminating adjustments if matenial This information is disclosed in the tables below os at 31 December 2012,
pnor 16 the Recapitabzation as desanbed in note 29 “Events after balonce sheet date”

€ milions YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2012
Non-

Guarantor guarantor Eliminations Conschdated

Revenue 4,347 2,947 {70) 7.224
Work contracted out {2072 {1.662) 23 (3711)
Personnef expenses (1,352 (684) {2,036)
Other operating expenses (762) (511} 47 {1226)
Operating expenses exduding depreciation, amorhization and Impalrment (4,186} (2,857) 70 {6,973)

EBITDA before specific items 161 90 - 251
Speafic items {51) (27) (78}
EBITDA after specifc tems 110 63 - 173
Deprecialion, amortization arxd impairment (308) (186) (L94)
Operating income {198) {123 . {32%)
Net finance expense (induding foreign exchange movements) (314) (34) (348}
Profit (after tax) from investments In assoaates 12 a2 - .
Profit / {loss) before income taxes {500) (169) - (669)
Income tax expense (12} {12}
Loss for the year (500) (181} - {681)

Attnbutable to

Minanty interests 4 [
Equity holders of the Company (500) (185} (685)

Loss for the year (500} (181) - {681)
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€ milions YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2011
Non

Gugrantor guarantof Ehminations Consolidated
Revenue 4,045 2919 {69) 6,895
Work contracted out {1912) {1626) 22 (3516)
Personnel expenses (1254) (690) {1 944)
Othet operolng expenses (703} {658) 47 {1,
Operating expenses excluding depreciation, amortlization and impairment {3,869) (2,774} 69 (6,574)
EBITDA before speafic items 176 145 - n
Speafic Items {57) (19) (76)
EBITDA 119 126 - 245
Depreciaton_amortization ond imparment {108} {62} (170
Operating income n b4 - 75
Net finance expense {Including fose.gn exchange movements) (235) {31) {266)
Profit {after tax) from investments In associates - - -
Profit { {loss) befare incame taxes {224) 33 - {(191)
Income tox expense (3 [22) (25)
Loss for the year (227} 11 - {216)
Attnbutable to
Non controlling Interests 2 2
Equity holders of the Company (227} 9 (218)

Loss for the year (227) 11 - (216)
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€ milllons AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2012
Non-

Guarantor guarantor Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 909 612 1,521
Property, plant and equipment 146 110 - 256
Investment in assocaates 4790 397 {5.187)
Deferred ;ncome tax assets 34 28 {56) [
Amounts receivable from other CEVA companies 166 (4) {162}
Prepayments 12 23 35
Other non current assets 5 12 17
Total non-current assets 65,062 1,178 {5,405) 1,835
Current assets
Inventory 10 5 15
Trade and other recevables 768 1,200 (881) 1,087
Prepayments 32 14 46
Accrued income 91 98 25 214
Income tadx recelvable & 1 7
Cash ond cosh equivalents 65 192 257
Assets of disposal group dassified as held for sale 125 125
Total current ossets 1,097 1,510 {856) 1,751
TOTAL ASSETS 7,159 2,688 (6,261) 3,586
EQUITY
Total Group equity 3,246 1,140 {5,199) {813)
LIABILITIES
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 2485 284 (206) 2563
Defecred income tax habihties 66 40 {45) 61
Reutrement benefit obhgations 58 56 114
Provisions 49 n 60
QOther non current habilities 24 6 30
Total non-cusrent liabilities 2,682 397 (251) 2828
Current linbiities
Borrowings 77 48 125
Provisions 42 23 65
Trade and other payubles 1,097 1080 (811) 1,366
Income tax paycble 5 - S
Ligbilities of disposal group dassified as held for scle 10 - 10
Total current Liabihities 1,231 1,151 {811) 1,51

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,159 2,688 (6,261) 3,586
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€ millions AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2011
Non-

Guarantor guarantor Eliminations Conschdated
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 1,244 755 1999
Property plont and equiprment 173 131 309
Investment in associates 4672 410 (5082)
Deferred income tax assels 55 27 {69) 13
Amaunts recevable from other CEVA companies 165 [ (171}
Prepayments 1 24 35
Other non curent assets 5 8 13
Total non-current assets 6,330 1,361 (5,322) 2,369
Current assets
Inventory 19 4 23
Trade and other recewvables 747 1,128 (833) 1042
Prepayments 32 15 47
Acaued income 55 110 22 187
Cash and cash equivalents 36 181 217
Assets held for sale & 4
Tota! current assets 889 1,442 (811) 1,520
TOTAL ASSETS 7,219 2,803 {6,133) 3,885
EQUITY
Total Group equity 3,094 1,332 (5,092} {666)
LIABILITIES
Non-current habilities
Bomowings 2,664 305 {160) 2809
Deferred inzome tax habliLies 97 43 {59} 86
Retirement benefit cbligations 34 60 94
Provisions 48 15 63
Other non current habiities 19 & 25
Total non-current habihities 2862 434 {299) 3077
Cumrent Lahilities
Borrowings 59 44 103
Provisions 47 16 63
Trade and other payables 1,157 971 {822} 1306
Income tax payable 6 6
Total current liabilities 1,263 1,037 {822) 1,478
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,219 2,803 {6,133) 3889
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We have audited the group finanial staterments of CEVA Group ple for the year ended 31 December 2012 which compnse the Consolidated Income
Statement the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive [ncome the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Cosh Flows and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the refated notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preporation 1s applicable
law and International Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explained more fully In the Directoss Responsibililies Statement set out on page 15 the duectors are responsible for the preparation of the finanaal
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibiity Is to cudit and express an opinion on the finanoal stetements i
occordance with appkcable law and International Stondards on Auditing {UK and Ireland} Those stendards require us to comply wath the Auditing Practices

Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, induding the oplnions, bas been prepated for and only for the company’s members as o body In accordance with Chapter 3 of Parst 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not in giving these opirions accept ar assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
persan to whom this report Is shown of into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An gudit iInvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts ond disdosures in the financal statements suffioent to give reasonable assurance that the financal
statements are free fror materiol misstaternent, whether coused by fraud or error This indudes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
apprapnate to the group's clrcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disdosed the reasonableness of significant accounting
esumates made by the directors and the overall presentation of the finanaal statements In addition, we read al! the finoncial and non financial information
in the annual report to Identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financiol statements 1f we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or

ingonsistencies we conslder the imphecations for our report

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In gur opinion the group financif statements

« gwe a true and far view of the state of the group s affaws as at 31 Decernber 2012 and of 1ts loss and cash flows for the year then ended
+ have been propeily prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Un:on ond

» have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinian the Information given in the Drrectars’ Report for the finanaal year for which the group finoncicl statements are prepared 1s consistent wath the

group financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compantes Act 2006 requlres us to report to you If, In our opinion
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specfied by low are not mode or

+ we have not received all the information and explanctions we requure for our audit

OTHER MATTER
We have reported separately on the parent company fingnaal statements of CEVA Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2012

(1 M

Graham McGregor (Senlor Statutory Aud:tor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Stetutory Auditors
London

2 May 2013

Notes
« The maintenance ond integnty of the CEVA Group plc website is the responsibility of the direciors the work carried out by the ouditors does not involve

consideration of these matters and, accordingly the auditors accept no resporisibility for any changes that may have occurred to the finanaial stotements

since they were [nltlally presented on the website
+ Legisiation In the United Kingdem governing the preparation and dissermination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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€ rmultions AS AT 31 DECEMBER
Note 2012 2011
Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 3 306 306
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 2437 2,352
Total fixed assets 2,743 2,658
Current assets
Amounts owed by subsidtary undertakings 61 29
Income tox recervable  group relief 22 32
Total current assets 83 61
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 164 180
Acoued and other current labilibies 54 61
Total 218 24
Net cusrent habilities £135) {180)
Total assets less current liabilities 2,608 2478
Creditors - amounts falling due ofter more than one year
Borrowings 4 1790 2089
Other non current habilities 5 19
Net assets B13 370
Copital and reserves 5
Called up share capital 1 1
Share premlum account 382 382
Othes reserves 523
Net investment hedges [§)] (3)
Profit ond loss reserve (92) {10)
Total equity shareholders’ funds 813 370

The financial stotements on poges 17 to 65 were approved by the Board of Directors on 2 May 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

Marvin O Schienger
Director
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The pnncipal accounting pokces of CEVA Group Plc (the Company) are set out below These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented

11 Basls of preparation
The finanaal statements are prepared on a going concern basts and under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certaln finandal
assets and habikuies at fawr value in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and apphcable United Kingdom accounting standasds (UK GAAP)

Notes “Share capltal” “Share based payments™ Contingences™and Related party transactions™ of the CEVA Group Plc consolldated accounts also form part
of these financtal statements

As permitted by section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 the Company's profit and loss account has not been presented The CEVA Group Plc consolidated
finaneial staterments for the year ended 31 December 2012 contain a consolidated statement of cash flows Consequently the Company has taken advantage
of the exemption of FRS 1 (Revised 1996) Cash Flow Statements’ not 1o present its own cash flow statement.

The CEVA Group Pic consolidated financial statements for the yeor ended 31 December 2012 contain reloted party disdosures Consequently, the Company

has taken advantage of the exemption N FRS8 Related Party Disclosures not to disclose transactions with other members of the CEVA Group which are

elirminated on cansohdation The ulimate controlling party of CEVA Group Plc 15 Apollo Detarls of related party transactions with Apolio are given Innote 28
Related party transactions’ of the consolidoted finanaat statements

The CEVA Group Plc consohdated financal stotements for the year ended 31 December 2012 contain finandal instrument disclosures which comply with FRS
29 Finanaal Instruments Disdosure and Presentation  Consequently the Company has taken odvantage of the exemption in FRS 29 not to present separate
finanaal Instrument disclosures for the Company

1 2 Forelgn currency tronslation

Forengn currency transactions are translated into Euro using the exchange rates prevalling at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transoctions and from the translation at year end exchange rotes of monetary gssets and habihties denominated in
foreign curienaies are recognized in profit and loss

13 Investments In subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiory undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment Investments In subsidiary undertakings and cmounts recejvable from
subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment if there are indigators that the camying value may not be recoverable

14 Taxation

Full pravision Is made for deferred Incarme taxation on ail timing differences which have ansen but not reversed ot the Bolance Sheet date Deferred income
tax assets are recognized Lo the extent that it Is regarded as more ITkefy than not that there will be sufficient taxable profits from which the underlying tming
differences can be deducted

The deferred income tax balances are not discounted

15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized inttially at fair value net of transaction costs ncurred Borrowings ate subsequently stated at amortized cost any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in profit or kyss over the penod of the borrowings using the effective
interest method

16 Share caphal
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the Issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction
from equity net of any tax effects

2 OTHER INFORMATION

Directors, employees and auditor remuneration

The directors and certain other executive manogement of CEVA Group Plc were the only employees of the Company duning the 2012 financial yeor Directors’
emoluments are disclosed innote 7 Personnel expenses of the consolidated finanaal statements Auditor remuneration Is disdosed in note B of the
consohdated financial statements
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

3 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

€ millions

Balance at 1 January 2011

306

Addttions

Disposals

Imparrment

Balance at 31 December 2011/ 1 January 2012/ 31 December 2012

306

The list of the principal subsidiaries 1s mcluded in note 30 of the consolidated financal statements CEVA Limited Pamtblend Limited, Paintblend 2 Limuted

CEVA Logistics Cayman ond CEVA Logistics Second Coyman are directly held wholly owned subsidianes of CEVA Group Pic

4 BORROWINGS

€ mithions 2012 201
Loan notes 1706 1495
Bark borrowings 84 504,
Borrowings 1,790 2,089
Lean notes comprise
+ US$775 mulion 8 375% first hen semor secured notes due 2017 (2011 US3450 million}
« US$210 million 11 625 % semor secured priority hen notes due 2016 (2011 WS$210 miflion)
« US$702 milron 11 5% jumior priority semor secured nates due 2018 (2011 U53702 mifhon)
« €11 million 12% serior ynsecured notes due 2014 (2011 €11 milkon)
» US$620 million 12% % Seruor Notes due 2020 (2011 )
« None of the 8 5% serior notes due 2014 (2011 €266 million}
« None of the 8 5% semar nates due 2018 (2011 €73 muhion)
« None of the 10% semor subordinated notes due 2016 (2011 €81 million)
« None of the 10% senior subardinated notes due 2018 (2011 €57 milhon)
Bank barrowings compnse
« None of the 9 75% semior unsecured loan due 2015 (2011 U5$165 million)
«S$113 million (2011 US$629 mullion) of the 9 75% semor unsecured loan due 2018
Further details are disclosed in note 21 Borrowings of the consolidated finanaal statements
5 EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Profit Total equity

Called up premium Other and loss shareholders'
€ millions share capital account reserves reserve funds
Balance at 1 January 2011 1 382 37 420
Net investment hedges - (3) {3)
Result attributable 1o equity holiders for Yhe year . - 7) n
Balance at 31 December 2011/ 1 January 2012 1 382 (13) 370
Net investment hedges ) (1}
Capital contribution (note 21 of the consolidated financial staternents) - 523 - 523
Result attnbutable to equity holders for the year (79) (79)
Balance at 31 December 2012 1 382 521 {93} 813

Further mformation on the share capital of the Company 1s shown in note 20 Share capital of the consohdated financial statements

6 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

Refer to note 29 of the consohdated finanaal statements
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
CEVA Group Pic

We have audited the parent company Financial statements of CEVA Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2012 which comprise the Company Balorce
Sheet and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s appheable law and United Kingdom Accounting |
Standards {Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

KESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the Directors” Responsibilities Staternent set out on page 15 the directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent company
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view Our responsibiiity 15 1o audit and express an apinion on the parent company
financial statements i occordance with apphicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Thase standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report including the opinions has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accerdonce with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and for no cther purpose  We do not in giving these opinions accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands It may come save where expressly agreed by our prior cansent in writing

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
finanaial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or emar This indudes an assessment of whether the accounting polaes
are appropnate 16 the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently apphied and adequately disdosed the reasonableness of significant
accounting estmates made by the directors and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addittion, we read all the finanoal and non financial
infarmation in the annual report to identify maten:al inconsistencies with the audited financial statements |If we become aware of any apparent matenat
misstatements or nconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our cpimon the parent company finanaal statements

» give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as ot 31 December 2012

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and
» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

OPINION ON GTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opirion the Informatton given in the Directors” Report for the financiol year for which the parent company finanaal staternents are prepored Is
consistent with the parent company financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report n respect of the following matters where the Compantes Act 2006 requires us to report to you If in our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from branches not vistted
byus or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns or

» certain disdosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

OTHER MATTER
We have reported separately on the group finenoal statements of CEVA Group ple for the year ended 31 December 2012

CL ML .

Graham McGregor (Semnior Statutory Auditor)

for and on beha!f of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

2 May 2013

Notes

» The maintenance and integnty of the CEVA Group Plc website 15 the responsibility of the directors the work camed out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these ratters and accordingly, the auditats accept no responsibility for any changes that may hove occurred to the finongal stoterments
since they were imtiglty presented on the website

« Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions
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Comparative Information for Year 2011

INCORPORATION 8Y REFERENCE
Rather than snctude in this annuol report some of the infarmation induded in our previous annual reports, we ore incorporating this inforration by reference
which means that we are disdosing Important informotion to you by referring you Lo another document posted on our website and filed with the Insh Stock
Exchange ('ISE } The following document contazns important information about us and we incorperate 1t by reference

« The CEVA Group Plkc Annual Report for the year 2011 posted on our webslite and fited by us with the I5E

Any staternent contained In o document Incorporated or considered to be incorporated by reference in this anmual report shall be considered to be modified or

superseded for purposes of this annua! report to the extent that a statement contalned 1n this annual report of 0 any subsequently posted or filed document
that Is or Is considered to be incorporated by reference modifies or supersedes such statement Any statement that 1s modified or superseded shall not except

as so modified or superseded constitute a part of this annual report

You can obtain the document incorporoted by reference in this annual report from
« Our website (hitp /fwww cevologistics comlen US/aboutus/Investors)
= The website of the Insh Stock Exchange (hitp ffwwwise e}
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Description of Key Line Items in the
Consolidated Income Statement

Betow 15 a bnef descnption of the composiuion of the key hne terns of out Consohdoted Income Stoternent
REVENUE
Revenue represents the defivery of goods and services to third parties less discounts ¢redit notes ond taxes levied on sales

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses have been dassifled by nature as follows
» Work contracted out indudes amounts charged by third parties dwrectly attnbutable to the normal operating actwities of the business The majority of these

<osts relate to purchased trensportation
« Personnel expenses are charged to the profit and loss account when due and In accordance with emiployment contracts and obligations This includes all
woge and social costs of both direct and indirect employees It also includes agency costs of non permanent (subcantracted) warehouse personnel

» Other operating expenses indude cost of materlals (induding fuel, packaging, pallets and utility costs) and costs incuned for nsuronce, consultancy, audel,
legal and miscellaneous costs Additionally this includes expenditure assocloted with the rental of trucks ond materlal handling equipment, as well as

warehouse rental costs Other operating income representing insurance recelpts and other sundry iIncome may be netted ogainst other operating expenses If

they are not materia)
DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT
Depreciabion ond amortization 15 chaged to profit o loss on o stravght bne basis over the expedted Yie of the related asset Amortization and imparment on
contractual customer relationships and brands recogruzed upon the acquisition of the Controct Logistics business from TNT NV and the Freight Management
business from EGL Inc 15 recognized in amortization and impaiment on purchased Intangibles Impairment i1s recogrized tn profit or loss as incurred

NET FINANCE INCOMEXEXPENSE} (INCLUDING FOREIGN EXCHANGE MOVEMENTS)
Interest ncome manly refates to interest eomed on loans and deposits and interest charged on overdue customer recevables Interest and similar expenses

refates to interest charged on loans financial leoses, other borrowings and pension schemes

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Income tax represents the eggregate amount mduded i the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred income tax
Current 1ax 1s the amount of income taxes payable / (recoverable) in respact of the taxable profit / (loss) for a period Deferred income tax represents the

armounts of income taxes payable / {recovercble) in future periods in respect of taxable (deductible) temporary differences and unused tax losses
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Certain Definitions

IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT
* Unless expressly stated otherwise or where the context otherwise requires, 'the Company “we ,'us , 'our’, Group' and other savukar terms refer to CEVA

Group Pic and its subsidiartes after gnving effect to the EGL Acquisition
=+ Apdllo refers to Apollo Global Management. 1L.C and ts affiliates, which Indude Apollo Management VI LP AP VI CEVA Holdings, L P AlpInvest Portners

Beheer 2006 L P and AAA Guarontor — Co Invest VI (B) LP
« Net copital expenditure 1 defined as amounts used dunng a particular period to acqulre or improve lang term assets such as praperty plant or equipment

or intangible assets net of sale and leasebock and other finanang tronsactions and exduding items of a copita! nature acquired as.a part of an acquisition

= EBITDA or earnings before interest tax depreaiation and amortization’ Is not @ measuremnent of performance or kquidity under IFRS and should not be
considered as a substitute for profit / {loss) for the year operating profit, net income or any other performance measures denved in accordance with IFRS
or as a substitute for cash flow from operating activities as a measure of CEVA's performance Because not all companies cafculate EBITDA ientically the

presentations of EBITDA in this annual report may not be comparable to other simitarly titled meersures of other companies
» EGLAcquisition refers to CEVA's acquisiron of the Houston based fretght forwarder which was completed on 2 August 2007 pursuant to the terms of the

EGL Merger Agreement
Headroom Is the sum of cash and cash equivalents plus comimutted faclities less amounts drawn on committed faalines

= IFRS refers to International Finanoal Reporting Standards as odopted by the European Urion
* ‘Logistics business refers to the subsidiaries businesses, assets and liabilities of TNT thoat were acquired on 4 November 2006 by CEVA

+ 'Netdebt is calculated as total pnincipal debt less cash and cosh equivalents

= ‘Speaficiterns’ are sigrificant non recurmng items The prncaipal events which may give fise to a speaific item Include estructunng cost reduction programs

and matenal Ltigation costs amongst athers
» 'TFR refersto Trattamento di Fine Rapporto leaving service benefits provided to Htalien employees that are mandatory under Itahian law

¢ "TNT refeis to TNTNV
= Networking capital’ 1s defined o5 non interest beanng current assets minus non interest charging current habiliies

+ $'or dollar’ or United States dollor or "US dollar’ or USS refers to the lowful Guency of the United States of Amenta

+ € or Euro’ refers to the single currency of the partiapating Member Stotes in the Third Stage of European Econornic and Monetary Unicn of the Treaty

Establishung the European Community
« £ Bnushpound or ‘pounds steding’ refers to the lawful currency of the United Kingdom
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